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Office of Intemational Finance, Ce e By Airmait
Division of Corporation Finance, R
Securities & Exchange Commission,

450 5th Street, NW,

Washington DC 20549-1004 f: 23rd May, 2007.
)

Attn:_Filing Desk - Stop 1-4 a U P P L

Dear Sirs, : S U P f

EMI Group plc - Ref. No: 82-373

[

Further to our filing of 4th May 2007, | enclose one copy of each of the following items
that the Company has issued to the Regulatory News Service:

(a) an announcement, dated 9th Ma{r/ZOOT, confirming that Deutsche Bank AG and its
subsidiaries have increased their voting rights in EMI Group plc Ordinary Shares of 14p
each and, as at 4th May 2007, held 40,901,778 shares, being 5.11% of the shares in
issue;

(b) an announcement, dated 14th May 2007, confirming that Deutsche Bank AG has
decreased its voting rights in EMI Group plc Ordinary Shares of 14p each and, as at 10th
May 2007, held 37,333,464 shares, being 4.66% of the shares in issue;

{c) an announcement, dated 15th May 2007, confirming that ABN AMRO Bank N.V London
Branch has increased its voting rights in EMI Group plc Ordinary Shares of 14p each and,
as at 10th May 2007, held 33,101,497 shares, being 4.13% of the shares in issue;

(d) a News Release dated 21st May 2007, announcing the ENil Group pic preliminary results
for the year ended 31st March 2007;

(e) a News Release dated 21st May 2007 made by Terra Firma Investments (GP) 2 Ltd
regarding its recommended cash offer for the Company;, .

(f) an announcement, dated 22nd May 2007, confirming that ABN AMRO Bank N.V London
Branch has increased its voting rights in EMI Group plec Ordinary Shares of 14p each and,
as at 21st May 2007, held 52,852,483 shares, being 6.60% of the shares in issue;

(@) under Rule 2.10 of the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the "City Code”), an
announcement, dated 22nd May 2007, confiring the relevant securities (within the
meaning of the City Code) in issue as at the close of business on 22nd May 2007;

(h) an announcement, dated 23rd May 2007, confirming that ABN AMRO Bank N.V London
Branch has increased its voting rights in EMI Group plc Ordinary Shares of 14p each and,
as at 22nd May 2007, held 59,168,708 shares, being 7.39% of the shares in issue; and,

(i) an announcement, dated 23rd May 2007, confirming that copies of a document sent on
23rd May 2007 to the Company's shareholders, under Rule 2.6 of the City Code, had
been submitted to the UK Listing Authority.

Yours faithfully,

=P

C. L. CHRISTIAN

PROCESSED Deputy Secretary
Encs. JUN 0 8 2007

| AUNISON
ﬁ FINANCIAL

EMI Group plc 27 Wrights Lane London W8 5SW UK Tel +44 (0)20 7795 7000 Fax +44 (0)20 7795 7001
Registered Office: Address as above. Registared in England No, 229231
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Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section M &
Company EMI Group PLC

TIDM EMI

Headline Holding in Company

Released 16:39 09-May-07

Number PRNUK-0905

TR-~1 NOTIFICATIONOF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached:

EMI Group plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the No
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights No

Other (please specify): N/A No

3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification Deutsche Bank AG
obligation:

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.): Deutsche Bank Trust
Company Americas

Deutsche Asset
Management Investment

GmbH

Deutsche Investment
Management Americas Inc

DWS Investments Italy
SGR S.p.A

BWS Investment S.A.,
Luxembourg

TilneyGroup Ltd

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the 04-05-2007
threshold is crossed or reached if different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 09-05-2007
7. Threshold(s} that is/are crossed or reached: 5%
8. Notified details: See below

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 09/05/2007




A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of Situation previous Resulting situation after the triggering
shares to transaction
if possible the Triggering
using the ISIN transaction
CODE
Number Number Number Number of veoting % of voting
of of Voting of rights rights
Shares Rights shares
Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
GB0O000444736 3,161,300 3,161,300 6,068,876 6,068,876 337,902 0.76 0.04

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting % of

financial date Conversion rights that may be voting

instrument Period/Date acquired if the rights
instrument

is exercised/converted

Call Option 0e-2007 - 13,045,000 1.63
call Option 09-2007 - 13, 950, 000 1.74
Call Option 06-2007 - . 2,500,000 0.31
. OTC L ' - ‘ , . :-., , | r‘ ; -..:". . : - . ) ‘ . i
Call Option ~ 09-2067 . - .."_ ... 4,000,000 0.50
OTC

call Option 01-2009 - 1,000, 000 0.13
Total (A+B)

Number of voting rights % of voting rights

40,901,778 5.11%

-

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

N/A

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 09/05/2007
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Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional information: N/A

14. Contact name: David Lindsay
Andrew Anderson

15. Contact telephone number: 020-7545-8533
020-7545-8532

C. L. Christian
Deputy Secretary
EMI Group plc
020-7795-7317

END

London Stock Exchange plc Is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item {including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons andl/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply. '

©2007 London Stock Exchange ple. All rights reserved

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?i... 09/05/2007




5N T o e w r Ny

Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section . e &
Company EMI Group PLC

TIDM EMI

Headline Holding in Company

Released 12:58 14-May-07

Number PRNUK-1405

TR-1 NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached:

EMI Group plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the No
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights No
Other (please specify): N/A . No
3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification obligation: Deutsche

. Bank AG
4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.): n/a
5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold is 10-05-2007

crossed or reached if different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 11-05-2007
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 5%
8. Notified details: See below

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type of Situatieon previous Resulting situation after the triggering
shares to transaction
if possible the Triggering
using the ISIN transaction
CODE
Number Number Number Number of voting % of voting
of of Voting of rights rights
Shares Rights shares

http://www londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 14.5.07




Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

GB0000444736 6,068,876 6,406,778 3,838,464 3,838,464 n/a 0.46 n/a

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of Expiration Exercise/ Number of voting % of

financial date Conversion rights that may be voting

instrument Period/Date acquired if the rights
instrument

is exercised/converted

call Option 06-2007 - 13,045,000 1.63

Call Option . 09-2007. , - .. i = -, . 1+ . .g.. . 13,950,000 S1.74

Call Option  06-2007: - PIs M 2,500,000 . - .31
oTC Nowee L h I PRI T . . . . .

call Option 09-2007 - 4,000,000 0.50
OTC

Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of wvoting rights

37,333,464 4.66%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

N/A

Proxy Voting:
10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/R

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additiecnal information: N/A

14. Contact name: David Lindsay
Andrew Anderson

15. Contact telephcone number: 020-7545-8533

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 14.5.07
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Ref: 82-373

C. L. Christian
Deputy Secretary
EMI Group plc
020-7795-7317

END

London Stock Exchange plc is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content. Any news item {Including any prospectus} which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should not be relied upon other than by such persons and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and conditions, including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

@2007 London Stock Exchange plg. All rights reserved

http://www .londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 14.5.07




Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news saction A S
Company EMI Group PLC

TIDM EMI

Headline Holding in Company

Released 11:27 15-May-07

Number PRNUK-1505

TR-1 NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached:

EMI Group plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the No
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights No
Other (please specify): N/A No
3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification ABN AMRO Bank N.V
obligation: Londen Branch

4. Full name of shareholder (s} (if different from 3.}: N/A

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold 10-05-2007
is crossed or reached if different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 14-05-2007
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 3.0%
8. Notified details: See below

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type Situation previous to Resulting situation after the triggering
of shares the Triggering transaction
if possible transaction
using the
ISIN CODE
Number Number Number
of of Voting of Number of voting % of voting
Shares Rights shares rights rights
bBirect Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

http://www londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 15.5.07




GB0000444736 26,377,059 26,377,059 33,101,497 33,101,497 n/a 4.13% n/a

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of financjial Expiration, Exercise/.

instrument~ * ¢ . r- date. . ¢ ¢« Conversionit:
el . " ivperiod/Date™
AL {1 L IR
n/a n/a n/a
Total (A+B)

Number of voting rights % of voting rights

33,101,497 ' 4,13%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through
financial instruments are effectively held,

N/A

Proxy Voting:

10. Name of the proxy holder:

; Number. of voting % of. voting
+ rights that ‘may be " rights
, acquired if "the o
T instrument
is exercised/converted

n/a n/a

which the voting rights and/or the
if applicable:

N/A

11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional informatiom: N/a

14. Contact name: Myrto Koimtzoglou

15. Contact telephone number: 020-7678-0480

C. L. Christian
Deputy Secretary
EMI Group plc
020-7795-7317

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 15.5.07
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END

London Stock Exchange plc Is not responsible for and does not check content on this Website. Website users are
responsible for checking content.- Any news item (including any prospectus) which is addressed solely to the persons
and countries specified therein should npt be relied upon other than by such persions and/or outside the specified
countries. Terms and cqnditiélms. including restrictions on use and distribution apply.

©2007 London Stack Exchange plc. All rights reserved .. . .

http://www londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketMNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 15.5.07
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News Release RS
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE ! -
21 May 2007 ERO7/79

EMI GROUP PLC PRELIMINARY RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2007

e Underlying Group revenue fell by 15.8% on a reported basis and by 12.1% at constant
currency

e As announced on 18 April 2007
- EMI Music revenue fell by 15.0% at constant currency

- EMI Music Publishing outperformed the recorded music market with revenue declining
by only 0.9% at constant currency

o Group digital revenue increased by 46.5% from £112.1m to £164.2m on a reported basis
representing 8.4% of total underlying Group revenue

« Continued success in finding and breaking long-term talent with top performing artists and
songwriters in the financial year including:

- EMI Music — Corinne Bailey P.ae, Depeche Mode, Herbert Groenemeyer, Joss Stone,
Keith Urban, Lily Allen, Norah Jones, RBD, Robbie Williams, The Beatles, The Kooks,
30 Seconds to Mars and Utada Hikaru

- EMI Music Publishing — Amy Winehouse, Arctic Monkeys, Beyonce, Fergie, Gym
Class Heroes, James Blunt, Jay-Z, Nelly Furtado, Norah Jones, Scissor Sisters and
Vasco Rossi

* EMI Music operating margin reduced from 8.7% in the prior year to 3.3%, driven primarily by
lower sales reflecting tough industry conditions and an unprecedented level of stock returns

e EMI Music Publishing operating margin improved from 25.1% to 26.3%, due to a reduction
in the cost base and favourable revenue mix

» Underlying profit before tax decreased by 60.6% to £62.7m from £159.3m
+ Underlying diluted earnings per share decreased to 5.8p from 15.7p
* As announced on 18 April, further dividend payments have been suspended until the

benefits of the restructuring programme have been fully realised. The interim dividend of
2.0p per share has been paid

EMI Group plc 27 Wrights Lane London WB 55W UK Tel +44 (0)20 7795 7000 Fax +44 {0)20 7795 7001
Registered Office: Address as above. Registerad in England No. 229231
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Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£m £m

Underlyi‘r}g Group revenue 1,751.5 2,079.9
EBITDA" ) 174.0 2758
Group profit from operations (EBITA)" 150.5 250.5
Underlying PBT™ 62.7 159.3
Total {loss) profit before taxation {261.6} 118.1
Underlying diluted earnings per share"™ 5.8p i5.7p
Basic (loss) eamings per share (36.3)p 10.9p
Dividend per share f.0p 8.0p
Return on sales®™ 8.6% 12.0%
Interest cover™ 1.9x 3.0x

{i) | EBITDA is Group profit from operations before depreciation, operating exceptional items, amortisation, interest and tax

(i) | Group profit from operations (EBITA) is before operating exceptional ilems, amortisation, interest and tax.

(iii_| Underlying PBT is before exceptional items, amortisation and tax.

{iv) | Underlying dilted eamings per share is before exceptional items and amortisation,

) Return on sales is defined as Group profit from operations before operating exceptional items and amortisation as a percentage of Group
rBVENUS.

i) Interest cover is defined as the number of times EBITDA is greater than Group finance charges, excluding non-periodic interest and non-
standard charges.

Exceptional items include operating exceptional items and financial exceptional items. Operating exceptional itams include impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets, galns/{losses) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and remeasuremen! of listed investments. Finance exceptional items
Include remeasurement of financial assets and liabilities to be included within finance charges and exceptional refinancing costs.

Eric Nicoli, CEO of EMI Group, said, “This has been a challenging year for EMI Group primarily
as a result of the worsening market conditions which affected the entire recorded music
industry with revenue declines in every major music market across the world.

“This led us to implement a restructuring plan which, as well as removing cost from the
business, wiil fundamentally change the way we do business. Moving forward, we will realign
our investment focus and direct our resources to areas where we will make higher and more
sustainable returns.

“We believe that digital sales will continue to grow strongly and are excited about the
possibilities offered by partnerships and new business models across both our divisions.

“During the past year, we have multiplied our digital distribution channels by entering into
agreements with partners who will make our music available across their platforms in many
different ways. Our digital activity is extensive and pro-active ancl we are open to experimenting
with all emerging business models. In April 2007, we were the first music major to make
available a new digital rights management (DRM)-free premium sound quality download product
as part of our strategy to provide consumers with compelling music propositions.

“We remain confident about our long-term future: while current trading conditions are difficult,
consumers’ appetite for music has never been greater. Although fewer CDs are being
purchased, people are consuming more music in more ways than ever before. We are
positioning ourselves to capture these new and expanding revenue opportunities as we build a
progressive music business which is truly consumer focused and well-equipped for the digital
age.”

EMI Group plc
Amanda Conroy Corporate Communications +44 20 7795 7529
Pippa Strong Investor Relations +44 20 7795 7681

Brunswick Group LLP
Patrick Handley +44 20 7404 5959

A live audio webcast of EMI’'s conference call to investors and analysts will take place at
8.00am (UK time) on 22 May 2007, and can be accessed via the Company's web site,
www.emigroup.com. An archive will be available for viewing shortly thereafter.




EMI Group p'érforma‘ncé review
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Recorded music industry = ' - R )
EMI Music operates in a marketplace that continues to undergo significant change, primarily
driven by the rapid development of the dlgltal music industry. Global d|g|taI markets increased
by 68.3%'in value over the financial year.to ‘account for 13.2% of the' total lndustry, with both
mobile “and fi xed ' line platfon'ns enjoying strong growth.’ Challenging, market condmons saw
global physacal sales decline by 13. 6% over the fi nancral year resultrng |n an ‘'overall industry
declme of7 6% for the perlod o ;{ . .
The dlgltal envrronment contmues to be dynamlc wrth new entrants new servuces and new
devices. Consumers are now “able to' access’ up to“4m’ tracks in the Iegltlmate dlgltal
envrronment enjoylng access fo 24 hour musnc stores wnth unllmrted shelf space

This year more people were able to access the d|g|taI envnronment due to the W|de avarlabllrty
of ‘broadband iines and music enabled mobule phones In’ the past year, mobile music in
particular has developed strongly fuelled by new services such ‘as full audio and video over the
air delivery. The last year has seen s:gnlt" icant expansion of mébile entertainment market in the
US. Music videos and user generated content are also gaining in |mportance bolstered by the
popularity of services such as Yahoo! Music. This is creating new commercial and promotional
opportunities for artist videos. Furthermore, the way people dlscover music is changing. The
past year has also seen the increasing popularity of social networklng ‘sites] This: gives EMI a
new way in which to market artists and is also a valuabie resource in gathering information
about consumer preferences., EMI contmues to actlvely explore commercral opportunmes
around SOCIa| networklng ST T TR LR S ey DL PR
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The mdustry has continued t6 make progress in combatlng both physrcal and drgrtal plracy FWe
have had notable legal victories against illegal peer to peer sites and continued in ‘our‘efforis to
get Internet Service Providers to take greater responsibility for providing access to unauthorised
content ' from “their - srtes Such successes mclude KaZaa" (Australla) Kuro (Talwan) and
ZoekmpS (Netherlands) This'has lmproved the buslness tandscape for ieg:tlmate musw sales
Today there; are over '498 legltlmate online’ 'nusn': seMces rn over 40’ countnes Mg
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EMI Musie 7 J"~" SR
2006/07 has been a challenglng year for EMI ‘Music: "Saigs” declined by 15.0% at constant
currency. This is partly a functlon of the declme within the total music mdustry as well as the
drsappomtnng performance of EMI Mus1cs portfollo compared to the brlor year We generated
seventeen ‘Tm+' ‘selling albums in the year mcludlng success?es from Norah Jones The Beatles,
Keith Urban; Corinne Bauley Rae, Bob‘ Seger and Joss Stone Strong performers digitally
included MIMS’ Utada Hikaru; KT Tunstall and OK Go Total dtgrtal revenue represented 10.4%
of total EMl Music revenue in the year e e
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Profit from operations’ before exceptlonal |tems and amortlsatlon (EBITA) dechhed to £44 9m,
resulting in an operating" margin’of 3.3%: “This ‘decline “in profitability “was driven by the ‘flow
through to profits from the reduction in revenues. In April 2006, we announced a cost savings
initiative -of £30m for-the* Group of which, £25m was targeted for EMI Music to be achieved by
the end of 2007/08. During 2006/07, the Group achteved £20m of thls target ‘which was well
ahead of the planned £10m. In January 2007, we also initiated a far-reachtng restructuring
programme toremove £110m from the Group cost base which will be completed by 31 March
2009. The majority of these cost reductions will be generated from EMI Music.

- Digital technology is multiplying the way$ in 'which we can monetise our music assets and our

key strategic priority is to continue to make our music content available on all economically
attractive platforms, formats and services to ensure the widest consumer reach. In April 2007,
we announced that we were launching a new premium download product which provides our
music at a higher sound quality and without the restrictions of digital rights management to
consumers. We are the first major recorded music company to do this and it is a fundamental
step towards removing the boundaries for consumers by enabling the interoperability of digital
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premium product in their digital music store illustrates how the absence of DRM |s promotmg
competition between digital retailers. By removing DRM, we’ aré “ablé ‘to' prowde a seamless
experience for the consumer, which we believe will grow the demand for digital musm

We contlnued to broaden our d|g|tal dlstnbutlon channels globally by entenng mto agreements
wnth partners who wnll make our music available, on their platforms During the year we entered
into’ partnershlps |nclud|ng a multl-terrltory deal with’ Apple reglonal partne sh;ps w:th MTV,
Yahoo, Last fm and’ Sony, and national agreements with, Amazon in the’ U$ Batdu in Chma
Napster in Germany and Playlouder and BT Vision in the"UK. In addltron lo establlshlng the
right relationships on the right terms, we are at the forefront of the' mdustry in explomng the hew
product, format and wmdowmg possibilities that digital enabies. For, example, dunng the year
we distributed tHe 30 Seconds lo. Mars vided' ‘using the latest Vyeb 2 0 technologyﬁ The flash
technology alidws' “Users to embed videos’ W|th|n their own wedsites and somal networklng
pages, with a click’ through ‘fulhction’ which allows viewers of the web’ page to purchase the
tracks and also allows us to generate additional revenue by putting advertlsmg around. the, video
content EMI Mu5|c repertonre is, now avallable dlgltally in.70 countnes up from’ 56 countnes in
the’ pr|or year We belleve that we have made S|gn|f‘ cant progre-ss W|th|n the digital aréna during
the year and that’ th|s wlll enable us to enhance value for our shareholders through the growth
of thas market |n the future AR
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North Amenca

2006/07 Has beén a chatlenglng year for the North Amencan rnarket which, decllned by ? 7%
overall. Digital sales grew strongly by 80.1%, which was driven, in particular, by the mobile
market. This, growth has .not. compensated far the decline expe rienced in.the phyS|caI ‘market.
Digital représentéd 20,8% of the fotd! market during 2006/07. . 0Lt L.

oo t“tw " R

Aga:nst thlp dlﬁ" ,cult backdrop, our, North Amencan busmess expenenced a. decllne in revenue
We had key successes “from, US artlsts Norah Jones Kelth Urban Janet Jackson, 30 '%econds
t6° Mars” and Trace Adktns |n Lo blnat, n. Wlth the effectlve marketlng and. promotlon .of
international releases from The Be r‘l'es Corinne Bailey Rae and Joss Stone. MIMS is our latest
urban breakthrough act in the region; his debut single has performed very strongly, with-1.3m
nng tunes, sotd and 0 Jm traqks downloaded globally in the fi napclal year '.;,J_:{.: agerd Ty ot e
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EMl Muslcs dlgltat revenue Il‘l North merjca mcreased by 64% over the year Moblle products
grew ; at the fastest rate but onhne dpwnloads continued, to repreaent the Iargest dtgutal segment
for. the reglon EMI Musm has conSJstently béen an 1nnovator,,of new products and services.
Most tecently,. we reached an, agreement ywth Amazon makung us the first musuc;major to be.in
Amazon's new online’ music store. We ‘wéré aiso the f“ rst music. major toﬂr,nake its, catalogue of
recordings available to Qtrax, which will be the first advertlsmq supported légal peer-to-peer
music. distribution service., During the year, we provided tracks which were used as pre-loaded

content when the Mlcrosoft s Zune player was Iaunched in Novernber 2006 e e
PR 1A A L P 3"\ i i

We belleve it |s |mportant to partucupate across “all genres and |n North Amerlca we have specuf' c
labels dedicated.to Country (Capitol Nashwlle) Christian (CMG) and. Jazz Music, (Bluenote) All
of these labels are well known for. their, .ability, to attract hlgh calibre talent such_as Anita Baker,
Amy Grant and Kenny Rogers Dunng the year, they generated strong sellers with releases
from Norah Jones, Keith Urban and. Chrls Tomlin. S

In September 2006, we completed the. sale and leaseback of the Capitol Tower in Los Angeles
which resulted in an inflow of cash for the Group.

As part of the restructuring we ann6unced in January.Z'O(iT. we have merged our two main pop
labels in the region, Capitol and Virgin, to form the Capitol Music Group. The combined artist
roster, talent and market share of this new labe! group establishes it as one of North America’s




Jeadllly dbuls. 1S TESITUCILNNG also involves additional overnead reductions throughout our
operatlons in the regron and an mcreased focus on burldrng our digital capabllrty

UK & Ireland

Consistent with the global recorded music market, the UK market experienced very tough
conditions over the last 12 months, partlcularly in the physical market which’ showed significant
decline in the: fourth quarter Total physical ‘sales declined by an estimated 11.8% in"the year,
while drgrtal sales increased by 79:7% to grve a total market decline of 8.8% over the 2006/07
financiai year:  This reﬂected the weakness in industry sales in the key Chnstmas period and
continuing price erosion as the spemalrst retailers began to compete on price with the
supermarkets.

The strength and depth of- our UK artist roster was again® .demonstrated this year despite the
difficult market conditions. Album releases from Robbie Williams and Corinne Bailey Rae ‘each
sold in excess of 2m physical units worldwide and The Beatles Love album sold 5m worldwide
during the year. A-number of new UK aftists also broke‘through to success .during_the year,
most notably’ The Kooks, Lily “Allen, The Good; The Bad and The Queen and Jamie T. EMI's
Britisti artists ‘'had tremendous success* in the US W|th Corinne Barley Rae and KT Tunstall
breaking through in the year. - 12 of the ‘top 40 best-selllno UK albums in the*US during 2006
were EMI releases, mcludmg seven of the top 12 whlch |s more “than any of our competitors.
"EMI Music’ continuéd t6' demonstrate its' strength in’ the comprlatlon market and |n the frnal
quarter of the financial year, it had three of the top-10 sellrng comprlatrons

Cer e t,

Our digital revenue for 2006/07 in the UK grew by 31% over the prior year with fixed line
downloads increasing by 16%, mobile downloads” mcreasrng by 41% and SUbSCl’IptIOI"I by 38%
over the period. Digital delivery brings ‘'many-opportunities for capturrng new revenue streams
which we continue 'to explore. For example, EMI Music UK has-entered into a’ deal with
Playiouder MSP to make avarlable its extensrve catalogue vla Playlouder s bundled subscnptron
and ISP service. I ‘ St -

As part of the restructurrng we announced in January 2007, we have scaled back in all areas
and merged- some" finctions of our four UK~ labels‘twnne mamtarnmg ‘the four urrprrnts We
anticipate that this’ wiil take” S|gn|f' cant:costs out ofJ the busmess while marntarmng excelrent
specialist AGR" skills in edchlabel that’ w.ll enable‘ b‘v.l ta’ caoualrse on the opportunrtres for
marketing its recorded music around the world, el

Continental Europe LT LL
Market conditions ini Contrnental Europe were challenglng over the t" nanc.ral year, wrth total
industry sales declining by 8.3%." ~ * '~

T G ‘e . . REEN
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EMI Music delivered a very commendable market share in a tough market environment. EMI
gained’ market"share in Spain, ‘the Netherlands -Switzérland; Ausiria ‘and Poiand while also
delivering ‘good results: in Greece,’ Belgium-and Iialy. Good performances came from a broad
range of established and new artists. Herbert Groenemeyer sold over 1m units worldwide of his
album 12 and it remained number 1 in the German album charts for five weeks in' a row which
has not been accomplished by a-local artist since he also’achieved this in 2002.French rap
artist Diam's achieved the best-selling album in France in 2006 with Dans Ma Buili¢, reaching
1m units since its release Diams also won Best French Act at the 2006 MTV Europe Musrc
Awards. e

We have sustained digital growth in the region during the financial year, with revenue
increasing by 30%. However, our digital growth in Continental Europe is constrained by the lack
of local fixed line retail stores in major markets such 'as Benelux and Scandinavia and a lack of
marketing support for download stores. Mobile products represented a greater portion of digital
sales in Europe than in the US or the UK, although: fixed line sales still account for the majority
of digital sales. The key issue remained the heavy level of piracy, particularly in Spain, Greece
and Italy. However, EMI| Music continues to explore all profitable digital models. For example,
EMI Music has announced an advertising supported, pan-European agreement with
Yahoo!Music, the biggest online video-on-demand service in the world together with AOL and
MTV, to enable consumers of online services to watch videos from EMI’s digital catalogue free




e TN T e £ coohem s EEEEEE OE Tel [ i R oo T T i

Last.fm, to make music from EMI avallable to its users and a deal wrth Sonv 0] pre -load EMI
Music onto the Sony memory stick as well as a number of pre-load handset deals including with
Nokia.

Durlng the year as part of the cost reductron programme announced |n April 2006 the region
redeveloped its organlsatlon and business approach to.address changes in consumer trends
and the consumption of music including the establlshment of shared service centres for finance
processing and advanced CRM capability and practrces in particular i in France and Spain. This
programme will contmue w:th the further restructunng announced in January,2007

Japan

The Japanese market declined by, 2.4% overall dunng the, 2006/07. year with drgltal sales
representing 12.4%.of the overall mdustry - - S N L T SO

Agalnst this backdrop, , our Japanese busmess performed ,.trong[y ‘wrth its. market share
|mprovmg by 0.6 percentage points. This was driven by successful releases from Utada Hikaru
selling-over 1m physwal ,units in the reglon -along. with local releases from DJ Ozma and. Glay
International ' best. sellers |nclud°d Sarah, Brrohtman and The .Beatles. Utada Hikaru also
performed phenomenally in. drgltal format W|th the Flavor of Life track selling 4 4m ring tunes in

the financial year and continues fo, seII strongly Overall, digital revenue showed an increase of

69% in the 'year, with mobile contlpumg to represent the majority of. total digital- sales. Digital
revenues represented 19.6% of total revenue’in Japan
. ﬂi 1 t

In Apnl 2006 we announced a major restructunng of thls busmess to |mprove the eﬁ‘ crency of
our operatlons to. reinvest a proportlon of these savmgs in .the key areas of A&R and
marketing, and to mtroduce a.new multi-label organisational structure. During the year, we have
implemented ; all.the initiatives to ensure that we achieve the associated .cost savings by the end
of March 2008. In conjunction with this restructuring, we sold and leased back two freehold
properties in Tokyo, with a substantial cash inflow generated from the transaction.

‘In Decemher 2006 FMI announced the p rch:—*se from Toshrba of |ts 45% mrnonty mterest in

Toshlba EMI for £93m..We expect to r plete the., purr‘hase. in. the t" rst half of the.2007/8
flnanc1al vear and EMI. wlll then own 109 91 ,of nur, Japannse operatlons Ownlng 100% of the
business will provide us with full strategic ﬂexrblllty intheregion. o« u. vy, v L nn e
South East Asia s '

The major markets in,South East Asia suffered sales declines as- physrcal and drgrtal prracy
continued to take their toll. Overall our business suffered a s.lrght decrease.in,share in the
regron but continues to deliver acceptable profit levels.

EMI s dlgltal growth |n the reg|on was robust wrth download reve nue growmg by a factor of four
times and subscrlptron revenue growmg by a factor. of six- times, as the region experienced a
pick up in. broadband penetratlon ‘We, gained drgltal market share over the year and digital
revenue.accounted for. nearly 15% of the region's, revenue Ma|or local .releases in the region
included Jolin -Tsai, S.H.E, David, Tao and ADA Band Top selling |nternat|onal artists included
The Beatles and Robbie Wllllams Ca NP e s :
. L . - R R e . .t

Music in China is an excellent opportu'nity' for us, particularly within digital formats. During the
year, we embraced the growing market in China by being the first music major to announce a
pioneering strategic partnership with Baidu to launch an advertising-supported, online music
streaming service in China, the first revenue-sharing arrangement between an internet search
engine and an international music company in that country.

We are currently implementing cost reductions in ‘the region as pa'rt of our restructuring
programme. :

Australasia
Market conditions in Australasia worsened during the 2006/07 fi nancual year. EMI Music’s
market share was modestly down. During the year, we generated releases from local



supersiars, 1he 1< Man and oliverchair, as well as selling Iinternational titles trom 1 he beatles,
Norah Jones and Robbie Wiliams. Our restructuring programme has; ‘already been
implemented |n the region. iTuhes launched in New Zealand during December 2006 and' thus
leaves the regton welI placed for growth in the dlgttal market.

Latin America® "+ TR oo i S e
Our Latin" Amencan business had a dlsappomttng 2006/07 year, Iargely because of problems
experieniced in Braznl 1 In*Octobeér 2008, an accounting fraud was discovered in our recorded
music operatlons in‘Brazil, which had a- £9m negatlve profit |mpact Followmg our investigation
of ‘the ‘evénts” and''factors' which led to” and ‘contributed to thé' frald, we have conducted a
thorough- review of our poltctes and procedures both in Brazti and throughout our operations
which we believe should mitigate the- possmllrty of 51m|lar |ssues in the:future.” ‘EMI Music Brazil
has ‘alsé been thoroughly restructured and new’ sentor management has been appolnted The
refocus of- the company culture is now weII undenrvay e T
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Local superstars RBD had another good year, selling almost 3m- Units globally of their six

currently released albums in the financial year. Releases from local artists Kumbia All Starz

and- Intocable were-also successful as were ‘the new artrsts Fonseca -Shaila, Kudai and teen

talent Beltnda The Latrn musrc icon, Juan Lurs GUerra has recently been srgned to EMI-

Telewsa s "t e Yty edde
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As ‘part of the restructurlng plan annouriced in Ja’nuary 2007 the Latrn ‘American reglonal head

office has been reorganised- and each country W|th|n the fegion® now reports dtrectly‘to EMI

Music International: ’ ' < o -'“ ,
RPNVl & ] EO R I o,

We believe that EMF's Latin music business, both in Latin America and in the US, will improve

its creative ‘and business performance due to our recent management changes ‘and to the

growing economic development of the Latin ‘demographic.-We ‘aré weli posmoned to develop

and exploit this through our joint venture with Grupo Televisa S.A., the largést: broadcaster in

Memco and the largest Spanlsh Ianguage conglomerate in the world.
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Dlgital revenues‘for 2006/07 were almost four 1irties Iarger than in'the prEvuods yearfand the
nsmg “penetration -of thobilé-phonds mnmost of Yétih America’ provrdes~a gr‘eat oppor‘unlty‘for

-the:legal: distributioi of fiitisicin the*imiediate’Titutd. <EME Latin“América’is focused” on-its

mobile strategy and has completed a regional deal with Telefonica Movistar as well as mdst-of
the America Movil's carriers throughout the regton It has teamed up with Sony Ericsson and
Nokia'for the creation of: preloaded content campatgns sttpportmg the new albums of ‘a number

'of Iocal and mtemattonal artlsts ‘For' example as part of the release' 'campalgn for Robbae
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EMI and Virgin Classic$'hada good year during 2006/07 with particular success in'France
where they grew their market share'by 7% and had a huge hit with The Miracle of the Voice *
from the critically acclaimed Soprano, Natalie Dessay.' Japan also performed well with'the Sarah
Brlghtman D:va colIectton and Slmon Rattle 's recording of The Planets
A A
The superstar ptantst Evgeny Ktssm has just been signed to EM! CIassacs joining other great '
names such as'Nigel Kennedy, Leif Ove Andsnes-and Angela Gheorghiu. Virgin Classics
added the brilliant young planlst Dawd Fray, and the German soprano Diana Damrau, to its

expanding roster.

EM! Classics is one of the oldest record label's in the world. EMI Classics has started a drive to
tap further into this incredible resource and share it with music lovers across the giobe. In
March 2007, EMI Classics and iTunes teamed up to celebrate the 80" birthday of the late
Mstislav Rostropovich,who was one of the world’s greatest cellists. EMI Classics is running an
international campaign in conjunction with iTunes giving music lovers access to his entire EMI
discography as cellist, conductor and pianist.




EMI Music Publishing .. A ‘

EMI Music Publishing once again delivered.a solid’ performance for the f nancnal,year ended 31
March 2007. Profit from operations before .except:onal trtems and amortrsatlpn (EBITA),
increased to £105.6m, an increase of 4.2% at constant currency with operating margin
|mprovmg to 26.3%. Due to recorded music market conditions, as well as some phasing of
income,. revenue..decreased . by 0.9% at constant, curency..to £401.3m., Overall this
performance reﬂected both the. underlying health and resilience: of the busrness as well as the
early effects of.effi 01en0|es from our comprehensive restructunng programme.\ whlch in turn,.is
part of the evolution of the business. EMI Music: Publishing has |mplemented a, new strategy
that will reshape the busmess for future growth and flexibility wh!Ie at the same, t|me . building
on and holding ;true. to past successes. There are ‘four key. plllars to this strategy_ oontlnued
excellence in A&R, ewdenced by the. signing- of todays top songwriters; helping.to 'eform the
industry's infrastructure through licensing and rate setting initiatives; further. strengthenlno our
internal capabilities including process and systems re-englneerlng, and deepening and
expanding ourclient relationships., ;- ..., .. 4 . 0 A g Cge 3 et n g
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Contlnued success in signing.songwriters is, essentlal for ‘our future profi tabllnty ThlS year a
broad range of songs songwnters and products underplnned our continued ablll'ry o, sign - the
world’s’ best songwriters, while reflecting the quality and depth of the catalogue.. Notable
successes during the period included songs by Beyonce, Fergie, Gym Class Heroes, Jay-Z,
Norah .Jones, Panic! At.The Disco, The Fray, Nelly Furtado,. Tool, Young Jeezy, Pink,, Amy
Wlnehouse Arctlc Monkeys,,James .Btunt, Jamiroquai, Kaszbian, My Chemical Romance,
Scissor Slsters The Fratellis, The Feelmg Andreas Johnson, Estopa, Silbermond, La- R0|
Soleil, The Veronicas, and Vasco Rossi.
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IWIth the world S, best collectlon o,f songs, -we are worklng to drlve mdustry reform in order to

ensure that our. songwrrters are paid.for, thelr works. Nowhere is this more appropriate than. in
the world ofdlgttal revenues. - ...y o o
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Digital revenues continued to" grow strongly during 2006/07, increasing by 35.5% at constant
currency.on. the. prior year, to.£25.3m, Revenues from. digital music.are. currently classified
amongst the vanous revenue, categorles rmechamcal performance, synchromsatlon and other
uses, - based on. theﬁvarylng stetus of ipcome, collectaon for- these, new. uses,ln,,dtfferent
countnes . ta e eea’ 3T fuiw e, 10TV O Botaua 55 rEd DO T et L)
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The use of songs m moblle phoine prodqcts r:er?tems the most srgnrf cant £ rly dlgltal revenue
contrlbutor for . EMI Musm. Publlshlng and. contlnues to- enjoy..,very strong .growth. For:the
revenue from- moblle products we. have seen the. percentage contnbutlont from-ring,. tunes
increase significantly during the year whilst the contribution from ring ‘tones has decreased This
trend is expected to continue as technology, handsets and networks continue to drive a product
shift in the mobile space. Revenues from digital downloads (up 158.3% at constant currency in
the year), and other newer products, such as video downloads, have also grown.strongly. and
are startingto contribute. more to.the division's growth.. EMI. Music Publishing remains at:the
forefront of, digital music by fostenng relatlonshlps with new meédia companles -at all,  stages. of
development in order to maximise the epr0|tat|on of our songwrlters AAUSIC: o v g e
(b ‘, . T - - - ." i i

However, growth in dlgltat revenues in music publlshlng contlnues to Iag the recorded music
industry, reflecting an under-developed industry infrastructure for the tracking and collection of
digital royalties and the Iack of agreements on digital royalty rates for certain products in some
regions. EMI Music Pubhshlng is at the forefront of the industry’s effort to ensure that the right
structures and rates are in place to |dent|fy and collect fully all past and future digital revenues.
We were pleased to join the ‘Centralised European Licensing and Administration Services’
initiative, which is based on an agreement between the UK's MCPS-PRS Alliance and
Germany's GEMA collection societies to. establish a pan-European licensing and collection
mechanism for mobile and online dlgltal rights. This pan-European one-stop shop for the
licensing of online rights, which went live in January 2007, is a groundbreaking initiative in the
publishing industry. EMI Music Publishing is involved in many of industry developments and
rate-setting negotiations around the globe, all in the interest of making sure our songwriters are
properly and fairly paid for their works.
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Mechanical revehue "+ . v

Our mechanical revenues, which are derived from the sale of recorded music, declined by 6. 7%
at constant currency, reflecting the continued declines in the globai recorded mu5|c market
during the same period. Mechanical revenues now represent 42.6% of totat divisional 'sales on
a constant currency’ basis. On a regional ' basis, weaknesses in” Eastem Europe and
-Scandinavia-were partially offset by mereasea in Southeast Asra whlle the US the UK and
' Contme. .tal I:u ope were down marglnally . R
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Perfonnc.nce revenue - -] T e IR
Performance revenues, earned when a song is performed live on stage '‘played in a bar or other
public venue or broadcast on the radio or television, grew by 10.1% at constant currency for the
" year and now represent 30. 0% of divisional reventies on ‘a constant currency basis. Key drivers
of growth i this business are the chart- -success’of songs from' our roster of active songwriters
and the prol:feratlon of new media channels, especially ‘across Europe. On a regional basis,
performance incomie was particularly strong'in the:US, reflecting timing differences and strong
underlying growth,

Synchronisation revenge ' ‘' - ¢ T eb AT HR OG22 e

- Synchronisation revenue, which is generated by tne uée of“songs in audiovisual works such as
- advertizements, television programmes,. films, "C'Omputer games and in mobile phones,
increased by 5.6% at constant currency, resultmg in more than 12 years of consecutive growth.
From the record level achieved in 2005/06, EMI Music Publishing was able to drive meaningful
growth in synchronization by gaining greater penetration in mutt:ple channeis, particularly in the
US and the UK. This growth is an early reflection of our strategy to deepen and broaden our
‘customer relationships with licensors of music. Significant: hcences were issued woridwide for a
number of major advertising™ campaigns, - including Toyot Kirin ~Beer, *Pantene,” General
Electric, Maxwell House Ford, Venzon Proctor& Gambte Stamood Macys Fner1 and 02 ‘
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Other revenue Ve
Other revenue typically represents about 10% of revenues, although the absolute amount can
vary significantly from year to year. An important driver of the change in other revenue in recent
years has been revenus gained from stepped up efforts in enforcing proper use of our
copyrights. By their nature, these revenues tend to be irregular and unpredictable, accounting
for the overall decline on a constant currency basis in this revenue category.

|
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The recorded music market continues to undergo significant change as it becomes increasingly
digitised. At this. stage, uncertainty exists as to the. timing and extent of -future market
.development . We have seen physical, sales declining at a significantly faster rate: than the
industry - had antlcrpated but the Company remains positive on.the long-term: trends for the
mdustry and, in. partlcular {that there will be continued strong demand for digital music products
of all fypes. We believe that the launch of our DRM-free, supericr sound quality downloads, will
boost sales of digital music and help unlock the many opportunities of. the dlglta! market, Our
premium download product will be available with various retail partners including iTunes,
Amazon, VirginMega and Telenor. We are currently in negotiations with many other retail
services for the Jaunch ofthls product e .
n oo

In January 2007 we announced a restructurlng programme and_an update to our strategy to
secure sustainable growth |n underlylng profits and cash flow.. These initiatives will generate
annualised cost savings of- £110m and we. expect £76m of these savings o be achieved by
March 2008, with the full.run rate being reﬂected in the financial results for.the year to 31 March
2009. : .

We will continue to invest significantly in A&R to allow a continuing strong focus on artist and
songwriter development. We.are.z2lso, investing to develop further our digital expertise so that
we remain positioned at the forefront of the mdustry in.capitalising on the opportunities arlsmg
from the markets evolutron Cropert ot ml e e . §
| Er, nenciicesd o ST '

In the r‘urrent t‘ nanmal year EMI ‘Music is planning releases frorn Kasey Chambers Kom Kylle
Minogue, Lenny Krawtz LeToya M Moby, Raphael, Thalia, The Chemical Brothers and Vasco
Rossi. - EMI Mu5|c Publlshlng expects to- see releases from songwriters including Alicia Keys,
Ashlee Snmpson Arctic: Monkeys + Chris Cornell, Kanye West, Kelly Clarkson, Shiny Toy Guns,
The Palice, The Used and -White Strlpes .We have a world renowned catalogue in both EMI
Music and EMI Music Publlshlng and we will continue to explo:t them for the benefit of all
stakeholders. G e
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Revenue’
Reported underlyrng Group fevénue decreased by 15.8% or £328.4m to £1 751, 5m. Excludrng=
the effects of unfavourabie. currency movemeﬁnts the decrease was 12.1% or £252.2m. The
unfavourabie exchange movement was Iargely driven by an increase in the weighted average
rate of the US Dollar against Sterllng from'$1.78 last year to $1.90 in 2006/07.

At constant currency, revenue in ‘EMI Musnﬁ decllned by 15.0%, wnth notable decreases in North
Amenca UK and Ireland and Latm Amerlca \

At constant currency, revenue in EMI Music Publishing was down 0.9%’ versus the prior year
due mamly to declines in physical mechanical sales as well as rminor phasing adjustments. The
6.7% décrease in méchanical revenue was largély ‘offset by’ SOIId growth |n performance and
synchronisation revenues.

Group digital’ revenue mcreased to. £164 2m from £112. 1n,n if the prlor year ‘an mcrease of
46 5% Dlgltal revenue represented 9. 4% of total under!ymg Group revenue for the year

Costs VIR t.,".l VR I B R L F Pl

The underlying gross margin, after distribution costs, declined from 37.2% to 34.9%. This is the
result of a gross margin decline in the Music division. Royalty;’ copyright manufacturing’ and
distribution costs are all largely variable with revenue and have decreased in absolute terms in
the year. Marketing and promotion costs, however, were lower - in absolite 'terms but 26
percentage points higher as a percentage of total Sales"Controllmg marketlng spend |s a key

1 4

area of focus for the Music business this'year: « %+ = 2 ¥0GG Seldf 5

In April 2006, we announced a cost saving initiative 'td deliver £30m-of annuallsed savings for
the Group. Dunng 2006/07, we achieved £20m’ of savmgs well ahead: of the £10m planned '

and we remaln on course for the fuII £30m m 2007708 oA Sl el g
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In January 2007, we announced “aicomprehensivé” ’ﬂestructtmhg programme to realign® our
investment appraach and ‘stréamling- our-operations. ‘This pt’ogramme wilt” dellver £110m? of!
annuallsed sav:ngs with £76m currentfyantfoipated to be achleVed |n 2007/08 A
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Prof‘tfromoperatlons‘. i g L e v T “El ¢ |
Group profit from - operations’ (EBETA)"’ decfedsed by- £100 Om’ ot 39. 9% ‘from £250. 5m to
£150.5m. Excluding exchange, the decrease in EBITA was £94 6m or 37 8%. Group operatlng

AN

margln decreased from 12.0% t086% in the’ year+ ST DT S S
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EMI Musrc oelrvered EBITA of £44:9m; a decline‘of £100.2m of 68.2% at constant currency on-
the prior year: This decrease in: ‘EBITA was largely diiven’ by the revenue‘decllnes partlcutarly in
North America, ‘UK:and- Ireland and Latrn ‘America’ mentloned above The operatlng margln'
reducedfrom 87% t033% OE IR L e ST _
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EMI Musrc Publlshlng generated EBITA 6f £105.6m; a growth of 4.2% at constant currency on
the prior year. Operating margin improved from 25.1% to 26 3% reﬂectrng the partlal effects of
the restructuring programme’and its efficiencies. . <" 7 - o

The Group’s share of profit in its associated company investments increased from £1.0m in
2005/06 to £1.8m in 2006/07. Consequently, the total underlying profit from operations for the'
Group is £152.3m this year compared to _?251 .5m last year.”

Notes:
{i) Group profit from operations (EBITA) is before exceptional items and amortrsatron and before share of profit in associates,



Group finance charges, excluding exceptional finance charge's“, reduced by £2/6m to £89.6m.
This reflected a 3.2% decrease in average net borrowings, an increase in pension fund interest
receivable offset by higher rates in three of our rnaior funding territories (US, UK and,Europe).

Underlylng proflt before tax declined by 60. 6% from £159 3m 6 £62 7m reﬂectlng the reductlon
in revenue and underlylng prof t from operatlons discussed above SR L .

i

The Group underlymg tax rate, before amortisation. and exceptional ltems was 22%tagalnst
countnes where there were higher tax rates together thh'tosses in terntorles where we cannot
recognlse the Ioss This was offset by the settlement of.prior Iuabllrtles . -.,'::. o
As a result of the above the Group s underlymg proﬂt after taxatlon decreased from ,.‘.‘1 31 ém to
£48.9m, a decrease of 62.7%." et ey ez e

Underlying basic. earnlngs per share"’) was_5.8p, a .decrease of, 104p from .the prlor year.
Underlylng dlluted earnmgs per share the calculat:on of wh!ch inciudes. the’ rmpact ofathe
potential convérsion of convertibie bonds (and related bond interest) together with the poss:ble
exercise of dilutive share options, decreased from 15.7p to 5.8p. e

Notes:; = 7 LA peniionl flaon g enn asTna ke e e e et

(u)Before exceptlonal items and amortrsatlon TS 4 L T O LS RSN SEPCL o

e, Jn ~
oot saah +\rrt SRS S e e '-'.-‘,,'a ' P S I T
Other |tems affectmg eamlngsﬁ; caoys ae Y R
Exceptlonal ltems and,amortisation, comprise operatlng exceptlonal costs t' inance exceptlonal
costs and amortisation of music copyrights and intangibles. .. . ; . e

The Group-is reporting operating exceptional costs of £256.3m compared with income of £4.0m
in the prior year.-Operating exceptional costs-are net of a.£50.2m gain;on disposal of property
(including the sale and leaseback transactions completed; for our offices ,in-Tokyc and the
Capitol Tower in Los Angeles) and a galn follownng settlement of an mfrmgement case W|th
programmes1 announced mhl-\pnlt 20’36 and January‘ 2007 (largety headoount and- roster
reduction) and the results of ourc,balance sheet . review. announced ‘on:12- Januyary :2007 . and
concluded as ant|0|pated on 31 March 2007. The review resulted in a charge of £164.0m
reported as exceptional this year. The final elements of this year's exceptional cost are a £0. 2m;
loss on revaluation of investments and.£7.6m for.aborted corporate. transactlons We St fnavl
TE oy ST An e T, e g At 2 LR 5T
The Group is reportlng finance exceptional - net .costs relatmg to remeasurements .and
refinancing costs of £17.3m compared to net income of £4.7m last year. Finance exceptlonals
include the. loss _on. revaluation-to.-faii,-value of the, convertible hond- derivative of £5:7m
(2005/06; £4., 1m gain), the loss; on;. revaluatlon of the Eurobond .embedded-call . feature of
£21.3m (2005/06 £8.2m. gain) and- the forelgn -exchange, gain on. Euro borrowings: of: £8.1m
(2005/06: £4.1m loss). The finance exceptional net costs for 2006/07- include exceptional
refinancing costs of £1.1m in connection with the refinancing programme carried out in March
2007 (2005!06 £5. 2m refi nancmg programme carned outin July 2005) e
Amortlsatlon and |mpa|rment of musm copynghts and other mtangtbles amounted to £52 min
comparison with £49.9m last year
The minority interest cost reduced from a charge of £3. 9m in the prewous year toa charge of
£1.5m this year. This was the consequence of reduced profitability in the Music business in
Japan in which there was a 45% minority share for eight and a half months of the year. In
December 2008, we agreed to acquire the 45% minority share from Toshiba for approximately
£93m. The cash cost is due to be paid in the first half of 2007/08.

The loss attributable to members of the Company was (£288.5)m in comparison with an
attributable profit last year of £86.1m.




Ao dITNUUNGed 1IN APt U770, UNe DOdard 1o suspendmng dividena paymenis unti tne.penetis Ol
the restructuring process have been fully realised. The interim dividend of 2p per share was
paid on 2 April 2007. : : ‘

Reported results

Total Group loss from operations (including share of associates),was £(156.7)m in comparison
with a profit of £205.6m last year. This decrease was entirely. due, to-the decline.in revenue
compounded by exceptional costs of £309.0m this year compared to £45.9m last year.

Total loss before taxation was £(263.6)rm compared to a profit of £118.1m in the prior year. This
decrease reflected the reduction in Group grofit from operations above and a change |n the
finance exceptional from net i income to a net cost ) VL -

Cash flow and net borrowmgs

Improvement in cash conversion and overall cash management remains a key area of focus for
the Group. The net cash inflow from operating activities was £7.3m, a significant reduction from
last year’s inflow of £188.3m, reflecting a significant working capital outflow in the Music division
as a result of changes in trading patterns, the costs of our restructuring programme announced
in January 2007 and the lower EBITA reported this year.

After the net cash inflow from operating activities, we had cash inflows uf £65.8m for investment
activity and cash inflows of £85.1m for financing activity inclucing an outflow of £50.8m for
dividends. Taking into account the gain on exchange of foreign currency denominated
borrowings of £43.7m, year-end net debt increased by £24.7m from £879.5m to £904.2m.

The net cash inflow from operations after investing activities has approximated the operating
result of both divisions in recent years.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
for the year ended 31 March 2007

A

o _ ) Year ended Year ended

o . o 31 March 2007 31 March 2006

1. ) ‘ o £m N £m

Underlying revenue 1,751.5 2,079.9

Underlying EBITDA (i) - V' Caei ‘ 1740 2758

Underlying Group profit from operahons (EBITA (u) SRR oo 1585 . o« 0 -2505

Underlying PBT {jii) 62.7 11593 :

Total (loss) profit before taxation R . {263.6Y..0 118.1

Underlying diluted earnings per share (iv) o , 5.8p " 157p

Basic (loss)’eamings per share’ K S (363p 0 - 7109

- Dividends per share Y L 80p o 8.0p

Return on sales (v) 8.6% 12 0%

- Interest cover- (vi) iy 1.9x Ca 3.0x
e ) b o ." - . : ‘ -
- UndertymgEBITDABGiwppmﬁlfmmoperahonsbefumdeprac'ahonmdexmpbonallte:mmdm!orhsahon B T

(i) - Underying Group profit from operations (EBITA} is before excepuonal ilems and amovtisation.

(il  Underying PBT is before exceptional itsms and amortisation.

{v)  Underlying diluted earmings per share i before exceptionat items and amortisation.

{vj  Retum on sales is defined as Group profil from operations before exceptional itams and amortisation as a percentage of Group revenue. ., L
(vn Intamsi cover is defined as the number of tmes EBITDA is greatar than Group net ﬁnanoa charges exdudmg finance exceptional iterns. . -

' wilt L Jll!. a4 'IE"-')‘J:'h PP :'.-,-":1"
Excepbonaf iterns include operating exoapuond items and finance excepbona[ items. 0pe1'at|ng exoeptlona! items includa impairment of goodwill, gains {losses) on dlsposal of

property, plant and equipment and remeasurement of listed investments, Finance exceptiona items include remeasurement of financial assets and liabilities to bs mcluded within
financa charges and excaptional refinancing costs.




GROUP CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007

P
T

Year ended 31 March 2007 Year ended 31 March 2006
o Total Underlying Underlying Totat
£m £m £m £m
Revenue ; 1,808.3 1,751.5 20769 ... 20799
Group profit from operatlons tefare exceptional items and 2073 - ... 1505 . 25051 - 250.5
amortisation St :
Exceptional charge and amorﬂsatlon {416.0) ve s iodn il 1 (53.3)
Exceptional income e 50.2 BT T R S TP TS TR T
Share of prefits from associates ¢ 18 1.8 i 710 © 1.0
Profit from operations* .. : {156.7) 152.3 251 5 S 205.6
Finance charges a0 fol)
Finance income ' 793 63.0 o 574.; .74
Finance costs {186.2) (152.6) (149.6) (158.9)
Total net finance charges {106.9) {89.6) (92.2) (87.5)
Profit (loss) before taxation R - = 1) N, X A 1503 - - 1181
Overseas o (33.4) . (23.8) - (33.4), (33.1)
UK s 400 ~ 100 50+  '50
Total taxation L L e T (23.4) (13.8) (28.1) ... (28.1)
Profit (Ioss) from contmu-ng operatlons after taxatlon {287.0) 48.9 131.2 90.0
Attributable to SESEREI .
Equity holders of the parent {288.5) 86.1
Minority interest 1.5 39

* The following items are included within Profit from operations

Cost of sales (1,270.9) {1,069.8) (1,2304) (1,280.3)
Distribution costs {69.9) {69.9) (75.0) {(75.0)
Gross Profit : 467.5 611.8 774.5 724.6
Administration expenses (681.6) (466.9) {532.4) (533.5)
Other operating income, net 55.6 5.6 8.4 135
Earnings per share {EPS)
Year ended 31 March 2007 Year ended 31 March 2006
Basic (loss) eamings per Ordinary Share pote 6) {36.3)p 10.8p
Diluted (loss) eamings per Ordinary Share {note 6) {36.3)p 10.5p
Underlying basic eamings per Ordinary Share tnots §) 5.8p 16.2p
Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary Share ote 6) 5.8p 15.7p
Underlying eamings are included as they provide & betier understanding of the undertying trading performanca of the Group o6 a normalisad basis.
Average exchange rates for the year
Year ended 31 March 2007 Year ended 31 March 2006
US Dollar to £1 1.90 1,78
Euro to £1 1.48 1.47
Yen to £1 223.20 203.69

The resutts for the year have bean ranstated into Sterling at the appropriate average exchange rates.

** Excepbonal ftems and amortisation includa operating exceptonal items, amortisation and finance exceptional liems and tax on the axcaptional items. See the Group accaunting policies section of thess

financial statements Rr defindions of these terms and jor examples of the types of ransactions that may fall into sach category.




GROUP CONSOLIDATED BALANCE § SHEET

for the year ended 31 March 2007

EP

1

-

At31March2007- - - At 31 March 2006
o £m £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets TR,
_Music copyrights and mtanglbles ' l305 T " 389.3
~Goodwill " ©°289 43,0
Property, plant and equiipment w320 196.8
"Investments in associates el It U g
Financial assets S e g S 56.3
Deferred taxation 120 228
Other receivables '™ .- 37 0 4.4
Ce - st 0.5 7214
Current assets
Inventories . , 304 L 312
‘Advances : 179 330.1
‘Trade receivables . .- . 2898 "' 408.5
Corporation tax recoverable . R LRGN [ X © 187
Cther receivables 100.8 110.3
Financial assets 0.2 0.3
Investments: fiquigd funds 1.5 16
Cash and cash eguivalents INT 190.9
988.0 1,095.6
Total assets 1,498.5 1,817.0
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities (1.317.0) (1,149.7)
Other payables (6.5) {8.5)
Deferred taxation (3.7) (5.1)
Pension provisions (42.2) (31.1)
(1,369.4) {1,195.4)
Current liabilities
Financial liabiliies (12.3) (22.6)
Other payables (1,044.7) (1,149.0)
Current tax liability (112.2) (143.1)
Other provisions for liabilities and charges {110.9) {33.5)
(1,280.1) (1,348.2)
Total liabilities {2,649.5) (2,543.6)
NET LIABILITIES {1,151.0 (726.6)
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share capital 112.0 110.7
Share premium account . 455.4 4478
Capital redemption reserve 495.8 495.8
Foreign exchange reserve 19.5 (17.1)
Other reserves 2147 206.4
Retained eamings (2,451.0) (2,019.0)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (1,153.6) {(775.4)
Minority interests (equity) 2.6 48.8
TOTAL EQUITY (1,151.0) {726.6)

Year end exchange rates

US Dollar to £1
Euro to £1
Yenio£1

The balance shoet has been translated into Sterfing &t the appropriate year end axchange rates.

At 31 March 2007

1.97
1.47
231.53

At 31 March 2006

1.73
1.43
20466




GROUP CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE. "

for the year ended 31 March 2007

EAE

P
TIRT

2007

At 31 March
.- £m

At 31 March 2006
- £fm

Income and expense recognised directly in equity

Revaluation of music copyrights and intangibles

Exchange difference on retranslation of foreign operations

Pension funds: actuarial gains and losses

Gains (losses) on the revaluation to fair value of available-for-sale investments

s
e (26'6) fa
.14

oo

S e
T @)
et o 583
U N0d)

Net income directly .rq_tiognised in equity 73

Profit for the year v (287.0)

4 x :  -4‘].0
T g0

. -

Total recognised income and expense fortheyear - — - ~

C (291

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

(277.1)

131.0

A

1264

Minority interest {2.6) . .48
Total recognised income and expense for the year (279.7) Voo 10
: Ry N
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r
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GROUP CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2007

20086

2007
Em £m
" Cash flows from operating activities . :
Cash receipts from operations . .. 1,900.4 . 1,9824
Cash used in operations * - e ©(18628) (1,754.3)
Tax paid - T (39.3) C T (39.8)
‘Net cash generated from operating activities ' 13 188.3
‘Cash flows from investil;g activities o
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired (3.1) - {6.9)
- Deferred consideration paid LB L .. (09
" Purchase of associates | ., {0.9) (0.3)
: Disposal of associates . * " 0.6 -
Purchase of music copyrights‘and intangibles . 48) _41)
- Disposal of music copyrights and intangibles . 68" .13
Purchase of property, plant.and equipment " (26.9) -(30.2)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment . 928 1183
‘Puichase of other investments 08 -
‘Dividends received from investments - 46 .
- Dividends received from associated undertakings - 0.6 1.0
Disposal of other investments 0.3 59
Interest received 1.8 9.3
Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities 65.8 {2.6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ardinary share capital 36 0.6
Purchase of own shares (5.5} (0.5)
Equity dividends paid (50.8) {61.2)
Dividends paid to minorities (3.2) (2.5)
Financing:
New loans 453.9 207.8
Loans repaid (206.5) (277.6)
Capital element of finance lease repayments {1.2) (0.6)
Interest paid (104.5) (111.6)
Interest element of finance lease repayments {0.7) {0.7)
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 85.1 (246.3)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 158.2 {60.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 171.3 2291
Exchange gains (losses) on cash and ¢ash equivalents in the year (7.3) 2.8
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 322.2 171.3
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year compyise of:
Cash at bank and in hand 317 190.9
Overdrafts {8.5) (19.6)
322.2 1713




NOTE TO THE GROUP CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT - ..
for the year ended 31 March 2007

a) Reconciliation of Group profit from operations to net cash fiow from operating activities:

2007 2006
o £m fm
Group (loss) profit from operatlons {before share of proﬁt in associates) (158.5) 204.6
Depreciation and impairment charge 38.6 ' .- . 264
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equ:pment and music wpynghls and “ LT (86%5) o o T(94)

“intangibles : = o T
Amortisation and impairment of music copyrlghts and intangibles o 52 7 459
Impairment of goodwill L s, 1 ; .
Remeasurements — revaluation to fair value of listed investments wooe 0. 2' “(28)
Share-based payment transactions 5. 0. 49
Amounts provided . 1584 7 ) 18.2
Provisions utilised ) . (72 7)1 . (36.1)
(Increase) decrease in inventories o - 43" {7.3)
(Increase) decrease in receivables S lee3t T T (14))
Ingraase (decrease) in payables o (1 36.0) ' 536
Net cash generated from operatlons ' 466 . . 2281
Tax paid (39.3) (39.8)
Net cash generated from operating activities 13 .188.3

IR S -
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

1. LRSI

Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements of EMI Group ple and its subsmlanes (the "Group®) for the’ year ended 3 March 2007 were

-authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 21 May 2007 and the balance sheet was 'signed on the board's behaif by

Eric Nicoli and Martin Stewart. EM! Group plc is a public limited company incorporatéd and’ domiciled in England and
Wales. The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange.

LT e

Basis of preparatlon e . '
The-consolidated financial-information coniprises the accourils'of the Company and” |ts subsidiaries which have been
prepared in accordance with applicable Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union as they apply it to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007. The Groups principal
aocountung poircres'under IFRS are set out below

v
o

Where apphcable prior year ﬁgures have'been adjusted to drsctose them on the same basrs as current year figures. The
most significant adjustment relates to' the classification of ﬁnancrat assets’ and ﬁnancral I|ab|l|t|es which were prevrous!y
classified within financial derivatives, other investments’ and borrowmgs on the balance sheet these have been reclassrf ed
to financial assets and fi nancral trabllmes to more accurately reﬂect the nature of the assets and tlabllrtres

This preliminary financial information for the year ended 3 March 2007 does not constrtute statutory accounts under
§.235 of the Companies Act 1985. The statutory accounts for the'year have' not yet been delivered td' the reglstrar of -
companies bul include the auditor's report which was unqualified and did not contain a statement under S.237 (2 or 3) of
the Companies Act 1985. The preliminary fi nancral mformatron for ttte year"‘ended 31 March 2006 drd not constrtute

.....

audit report. . s
o’y ons .".!.‘.F R I .

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following Standards"and Interpretatio'nsr which have not been
applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective:

HAN ;t..- R AETT LI s NI T

Intemational Accounting Standards (IAS/IFRS) ~~ * = - '3';,"' - Al s S gpdedve from date
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures "~ ** it T e .-.”:.'r 1Jahuary 20077
IFRS 8 Operating Segments ~ * + <7 vre v TURARE dan 1January2009 -
'IAS 1 Amendment Presentatran of Frn‘encra,t StaterrFrents Capn'at Drsctosures A "‘“ 1January 2oqr ,'
LN .".»., 1 Y : I | [ HE AT i
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC] ™05 26 Fhioagt = hrfignd oo e
IFRIC8 Scope of FRS 2 . e 1iMay208
IFRIC @ Reassessment of Embedded Defivatives’ * 7 © TR T et ek 2 1 June 2006’ L
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions 7 March 2007

'The Directors" antrcrpate that’ the adoptron of these Standards and Interpretattons i future penods wrll have no matenal

|mpact on the ﬁnancral statements of’ the Group in’ the perrod of mtral applrcatron The exceptron is for IFRS 7 where
additional disclosures-on financial instriments, their significarice"and the natiire'and the extent of risks that they give rise to
are required. More specifically the Group will need to disclose the fair values of its financial instruments and ils risk
exposure in greater detail. There will be no effect on the reported income or net assels. The Group expects to adopt the
above standards for the year endrng 31 March 2008 wrth the exceptlon of 1FRS 8 whrch it expects to adopt for the year
endmg 31 March 2010 o

P N T N DL N

The significant accounting policies and key assumptions of the future that have' a"significant risk of causing miaterial
adjustments have been detailed within the notes to the financial statements.

All amounts in the financial statements are rounded to the nearest £0.1m unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the ﬁnancral statements of EMI Group ple and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007.

All intercompany balances and transactions, including unrealised profits and losses arising from intra-group transactions,
have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred out of the Group. Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated
financial statements include the results for the part of the reporting year during which EM! Group pic has control.



GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES gty
continued T

For purchases of minority interest in subsidiaries the Group applies the ‘equity cancept method'. Under. this method, the
entire difference between the cost of the additional interest in the subsidiary and the minofity rnterest's share of the assets
and liabilities reﬂected i the consolrdated balance sheet at the date of aoqu:srtron of the mrnonty mterests ls reflected as
_belngatransactlon between owners ot s m

Faenr T Fee . o -
Poilu T B oM oon oo U, RSN DI S -

-~ -
“ DR v, VT e B H O R RN

Foreign currency translation

Sterling (£) is the functional currency of the parent undertaking and the presentational curency.of.the Group. The
functional currency of subsidiaries, joint ventures and assogiated companies (“foreign operations™ ) is the curréncy of the
lpnmary eoonomlc envrronment |n which they operate R S SO P

W TR a1 S T owyy. B PR TA ]

Transactions 'in forergn currencres are rnmally recorded in the functJonaI current‘y at the rate, mllng on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functronal currency rate
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. ,All differences are taken to the income statement with the exception of
drfterences on forergn currency borrowrngs ‘that provrde a hedge against a.net, |nvestment ina forelgn operatron These are
taken dlrectly to.equity untrl the drsposal of the net mvestment at whlch time they are reoogmsed in the income statement,
Tax tharges”and credits attnbutable fo exchange drfferences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. -Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair va'ue in a foreign currency are translated
usrng the exchange rates at the date when the farr values were determlned L .-

- M-
P R

The assets and habrlrttes of forelgn operatrons are translated |nto stertrng at the rate of exchange rufing at the balance
sheet date and therr mcome statements are translated at the .weighted average exchange rates for the period.. The
exchange differences ansing ‘on the ‘réfranslation of forergn operations are taken directly to a separate component of
equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that partrcular
foreign operation js recognised in the income statement _ - e e

Business combinations and goodwill e o o ’ '

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is
meastired as, the farr value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange plus oosts dlrectly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired, and Irab!htres and oontlngent
Irabrlmes assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair va'ues at the acqulsmon date, |rrespectwe
of the extéfit of & any minority interest. The excess of the cost of the” acqursrtron over the fair value of the Group s share of

the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwrll P2 e 60 e i

s 7 i ',__.'"‘:'-“ s ".,ﬂi 'y f'".’,‘*-'?, "il'.'.'-'

P T - ..ﬂ

Goodwill on. acqursrtron is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition,-goodwill is measured at oost less any
accumulated |mpa|rment losses. .

R S L I T TR U\

IRt - P Ya
g.-,,,.l-l'la—.—a‘utl- i VAl L L .

Due to the adoption of IFRS 3 Business Combinations from 1 April 2003, goodwill on acquisitions. from 1. April 2003.is not
amortrsed and goodwrll already camed in the balapoe sheel is not amomsed from 1 April 2003. Goodwrll is, revrewed for
|mpa|rment annually, or more frequently |f events or changes in. crrcumstances mdlcate that the carrylng value may be
impaired, . L L LU e e O R

! ) T o 2 .
I PRI et LS P L = B

" -

For an asset such as, goodwﬂl that does not generate Iargely rndependent cash flows the recoverable amount whlch is
the hlgher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use, is determined for the ‘smallest identifi able, group of assets
including that asset that generates cash inflows that are Iargely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets {a‘cash generatrng unit). s e :

Intangible assets R
Intangible assets include music copvnghts and other intangibles. Intangible assets acqurred separately are capitalised at
cost, whilst those acquired &s part of a business aoqursrtron are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basrs over. their economic
useful lives. These lives are estimated on an individual basis at periods of anything up to and including 20 years.
Intangible assels are tested for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may be
impaired. Useful lives are examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets created within the business that cannot be distinguished from the: cost of developing the business as a
whole are not capitalised. Any relevant expenditure is charged against profit from operations in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred.




GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continued

Property plant and equrpment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value, Deprecratlon
is calculated un a straight line basis to write off the cost, less residual value, of assets over the estimated useful life of the
asset. The annual rates used are:

Freehold buildings 2%
Property held under finance leases and leasehold |mprovements Lower of lease term and usefu! econgmic ife
Plant equrpment and vehlcles o , 10- 331!3"/ o
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The carrying values of property, ‘plant and equrpment are reviewed for' |mpa|rment when events or onanges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Where an mdloator of |mpa|rment exists, the Group
makes an éslimate of the recoverable amount, which is the h:gher of the asset‘s net sellmg pnce and value in use. Wnere
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds is recoverable amount, the asset is considered |mpa1red and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

Assels are derecognised upon disposal or when ng future eoonom:c benet‘ ts are expected to anse from the contlnued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derec.ogmt[on of the' asset (calculated as the difference between the net dlsposal
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset) is included in the inchme”statétent in the period in which the item is
derecognised. - -
Assets are held at historical cost with the exception that ‘certain propertles in the subsrdlary undertakmg Toshrba—EMl
Lirnited were carried at revalued amounts that were frozen antil their' dlsposal dunng the ﬁnanclal year ended K} March
2007. This frozen carrying value was deemed cost in the case of these propeties.

Leases S

Assets which are held under a finance lease, which transfers to the Group substantlally all the risks and beneﬁts incidental
to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the moeptlon of the Iease mth a correspondlng ltablllty belng reoognlsed
for the tair value of the leased assét or, if lower, at the present ralue of the’ mlmmum Iease payments Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and a reductlon of the lease llablllty so asfo achleve a conslant rate of rnterest on
the remaining baiance of the lease liability.” Capitalisac ieased assets’are deprécrated over the shoftér of the ‘estimatéd
useful l|fe of the asset and the lease term. .
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-Leases where the lessor retams substantlally all the nsks and beneﬁts of ownershlp of the' asset are classifié as ope.atmg

leases. Operating lease’ payments are recognlsed asan expense in‘the income statemént on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Investments in joint ventures and assocmtes ) """ AN
The uroups investments in-its asswtates are acoounted for usmg the equrty method The mvestment is'carried in the
balance 'sheet at'cost plus' post-acquisition’ changes in the" uroups *share” of nel assets of the associate, less any
impairment in value or dividends received. The Group's share of the results after interest and tax of the associaté are
included in profit from operations. When an associate has reoogrused a change in net assets other than through the
income statement, the Group recognises its share of the change»and discloses it, when applicable, in the statement of
recognised income and expense.

The Group has a number of jointly controlled operatrons where there is o separate legal entlty The expenses that the
Group incurs, and the share of the income that the Group’ earns from the sale' of goods by thése jointly controlled
operations, are included in the income statement. The assets thal the ‘Group controls and the liabilities that the - Group
incurs, in respect of these joinlly controlled operations are included ini the balance sheet,

Financial assets ‘ : )

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes party to the contracts that give rise to them and are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; or as available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and
re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, being the transaction price, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
atributable transaction costs.

Those investments classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale are designated as non-current assets. Available-for-
sale investments are held on the balance sheet at fair value, with any changes in value being recognised in equity. When
fair value is not available, the available-for-sale investments are held on the balance sheet at cost less any impairment in
value. Held-te-maturity investments are held on the balance sheet at cost less any impairment in value.



GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES LT LD AT
continued ’

Those investments classified as fair value through profit and loss are designated as current assets and are held on the
balance sheet at fair value, with any changes in fair value bemg recognised in the income statement along with gains or
'Icssesond|spcsal o pee e e e e peare, L :
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Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Advances ol
In the ordrnary course’ of busrness the Group pays advances and other expen es reccupable frcm future rcyaltres to
performing artists, songwriters, prodiicers and third party repertoire owners. The amounts paid are carried at cost less
recoupment and less an allcwancﬁ for any, unrecoupable amounts. The allowance is based on past revenue.performance,
current pcpularlty and prcjecled revenue Vi CIa A e e, ey

Advances are recoupable dunng the busmess cperatrng cycle All advances are lherefcre reported as current assets
mcludrng advances reccupable mcre tban12 mcnths after the batance sheet date. C e

Trade receivables

Trade receivables, which generally. l'rave 30-90 day terms, .are recognised and carried at the originally inveiced amount
less’an allowarice for any dcubtful debls. An estlmate fcr dcubtful debis i is made swhen collection of the ful amount is no
,Llonger probable Bad debts afe wntten off when |dentrﬁgd e ST
Cash and cash equivalents

.Cash and cash equ:valents in the b lance sheet compnse cash at bank and.in hand and short-term deposits with an
original matunty of three mcnths or. Iess For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and- cash
"equivalénts consist of Cash at bank and Il;t hanq andshcrt term depcsrts net of outstandrng bank overdrafts .

Financial liabilities

Bcrrcwrngs oy i

Al lcans and hcrrowmgs are mltratly reccgmsed at’ the falr value of the consideration recerved net of issue ccsts assccrated
with the borrcwrng After mrtral reccgmtrcn rnterest beanng Ioans and bcrrowrngs are subsequenﬂy measured at amortised
ccst usrng the effectrve mterest methcd Arncrtrseq ccst rs calculated by takrng into ,account any issue. costs and any
,drscount cr premlum on settlement Gams and)t'gsses on dereccgnmcn,are recogm-,ed in ﬁnance charges e e

Hedge accounting is adopted where derivatives, such as “fixed to floating” interast rats ‘swaps, ‘aré held as fair value
hedges agains! fixed interest rate bctrrowmgs pnder fair .value, hedge. accounling,, fixed. interest rate, borrowings are

revalued at each balance sheet dgte by tjte I(Jgnge in ta value attnbutable tc the mterest rate fisk belng hedged

Financial derivatives
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps; and foreign currency contracts to hedge. risks
associated with interest and exchange rate fluctuations,. Such derivative, ﬁnanctal mslruments are stated at fair value. The
fair values of rnterest rate swaps and fcrergn currency contracts are determmed t:y reference fo mar‘ket rates for sumllar
instruments.  © .. Lo

N fuh e
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Hedges are cIassrﬁed as farr vaIue‘ hedges when they hedge the expcsure tc changes 1n the farr value cf a recogmsed
asset or ltablllty N .

In relation to fair value hedges (e.g. fixed to floating interest rate swaps held as fair value hgdges against fixed interest rate
borrcwrngs) which mest the conditions for hedge accountrng, any garn or loss from remeasunng the hedging. mstrument at
fair value is reccgnrsed immediately in the income, statement. Any gain or loss on the hedged item. attributable to the
hedged risk is adjustéd against the carryrng amcunt cf the hedged item and recognised in the income staternent '

For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to the income statement. .

Net investment hedges .

The Group designates certain fcrergn currency bcrrcwrngs as hedges of net mvestments in foreign operations. Any gain or
loss on foreign currency borrowings designated in an effective hedging relationship is recognised in equity; any gain or loss
relating to an ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income statement on disposal or impairment of the foreign
operation, '




GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Convertible bond

The component of the guaranteed convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a I|ab|l|ty is reoognrsed as a liability in
the balance sheet, net of issue costs. On issue of the guaranteed convertible bonds, the fair, value of the liability
component was determined using a market rate for an equwalent non-converlible bond. This amount is carried as a Irabllrty
on an amortrsed cost basis until extrngurshed on conversion or redemption. As the convertrble bonds are denominatéd in
us dollars but are converuble to sterling shares, the remamder of the proceeds is atlocated to the conversion option that is
reoognlsed and mcluded asa derwatwe iiability, net of i |ssue costs. The value of the conversron optinn is revalued lo fair
value at'edch balarice sheet date, with movements in fair value reflected as finance costs or f nance income.

Issue costs were apportroned between the liability and derivative components of the guaranteed convertible bonds based
an the allocatlon of proceeds to the Irabrlrty and denvahve components when the mstruments were first recognised.

r.-'.; MR S

Embedded ‘call fedture e
The host contract 6f fhe €425t 8:625% senior notes allows the Group to redeem ‘the’ debt at fixed redemptlon prices on or
after1500tober2008 o o T T S

' Oh Issue of the €425m 8. 625% senior notes the farr value of the liability component was determined using market rates
This dmount is carried as a liability on an amortised cost basis tnil ‘extinguished on rédemption. The difference between
the fair value of the liability component and fair value of the senior notes represents the embedded call feature that is
TFecognised and included as a financial asset on .the balance sheet Jhe. call feature is revalued to fair value at each
baIanoe sheet date, with movements in fair value reﬂected as exoeptronal ﬁnance oosts or exoeotronal trnance income.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present oblrgatlon (legal or constructwe) as a result of a past event, when
itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying. economlc benefits w1ll be reqmred to" settle the oblrgatron and when a
reliable estimate can bé made of the amount of the obllgatron Whére thie Group expects some or. all of a prowsron to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate ‘asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relatrng to any provision is presented in the income statement net of
any relmbursement If the effect of the time value of  money on the quantrﬁcatlon of the provnsron is matenal provrsrons are
- detertriined by drsoountrng the’ expected fiture cash ﬂows 2 pretax rate thaf Teflects curren] market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific o the” Irabrlrty Where drscountrng is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance costs.

O RSN "”': GLCNGEE T A !l-l ?."-‘ 'tl..' T PH SR PO L L O

Pensrons and other employee Genefrts '
The ‘Group ‘operatés thiee” ma]or défined Benefit pensmn schemes plus a number of smaller defined’ benefit pensron
schemes. The cost of providing L beneﬁts under the schemes i is determlned separately for each scheme usmg the pro;ected
uriit actudrial vaiuiation method o
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Liabilties of the schemes are discounted by the current rate of return of an AA-rated corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency o the Ilab|I|t|es Assets ‘of the schemes are. measured at farr value at the balance ‘sheet date. Actuarially
 célculated surpluses or deﬁc:ts on the deﬁned ‘benefit schemes are rnctuded within the consolidated, balance sheet. The
current service cos! of each of the schemes'is charged agalnst profit from operahons Expected returns on deﬁned benefit
'schieme assets and mterest on deﬁned bénefit schénié liabilities are included as finance rncome and finance _cosls
respectively. Wrth effect from; 1 Apnl 2004, the Group ‘adopted the amendment o IAS 19 Employee Beneﬁts that permlts
 actuarial gams and losses“to be charged or credrted d:rectly to equrty through the statement of recogmsed mcome ‘and
expense.

In addition, the Group operates a number of defined contnbutron schemes Contnbutrons to deﬁned contribution schemes
are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Employee benefits other than post-employment benefits that ¢an be carried forward if they have not been used are
accrued as they are earned until the benefit is paid or used. Those employee benefits that are foregone if not taken at the
time are expensed when incurred.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

- Sale of goods: revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer and can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value after making provision in
respect of expected future retums of goods and services supplied by the Group prior to the balance sheet date;

- Royalty and other income: all royalty and other income is recognised when it has been earned and can be reliably
measured.
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Interest in.oome is reoognised.yvhen it has been eamed and can be reliably measured.
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Share-based payments LT '

“The share option programme 2 “gllows, oertaln Group employees to acqurre shares of the Company The farr value of optrons
granted is recognised as an employee expense with a correspondmg mcrease m equrty The fair value is measured at
grant date and the expense is spread over ‘the period dunng whrch the emptoyees become uncondrtlonally entrt]ed to the
options. The fair value'of the optrons granted is measured u$mg a bmomral Iattrce mode], takrng |nto acoount the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted -

The amount recognrsed as an expense reflects the extent o whrch the vestlng pe nod has exprred and the Groups best
estimate of the number of awards that will u!trmately vest. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where the vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting urespectrve of
whether or not the market condrtron |s satlsﬁed provrded that all other performance condrtrons are satrsﬁed L a
Employees of certain subsidiaries of the Group participate in the employee share incentive plans and the Group has an
employee share trust to satisfy non-transferable optrons granted.to execulives and senior employees. Shares.in the Group
held by the employee share trust are treared as treasury shares and presented in the balanoe sheet asa deduchon from
equrtv o . o - o

. - . -
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The Group has taken advantage of lhe transltionat provrsrons of IFRS 2in respect of equrty-setﬂed awards and has applred
IFRS 2 only to equrty -seltled awards granted &fter 7'November 2002 that had not vestedon or before 1 January 2005.
Finance charges S
Flnance costs compnse mterest payable on borrowrngs calculated usrng the effectrve rnterest rate method, forergn
exchange Iosses and Iosses on "hedging'| mstruments that are recognlsed in the | mcome statement and mterest payable on
‘defined benefrt pensron scheme lrabrtrtres o

Lo e T ES

Frnanoe mcome corrlprrses rnterest recervable on funds mvested calculated usrng ‘the effectrve rnterest rate method,
drvrdend |nc6me forergn exchange gains and garns onqhedglng mstruments that are recognrsed |n the mcome statement
and rnterest reoervable on deﬁned beneﬁt pensron scheme assets
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income tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Ingome tax is reoognrsed inthe | income
statement except to the extent that it relates to |tems reoogmsed drrectly in equrty |n whrch case rt |s reoognrsed in equrty

Currenl tax is the expected ‘tax payable on’the taxable income for the penod u=rng tax rates enacted or substantrvely
enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous penods '

Deferred tax i is reoognrsed for"; aIl temporary drfferences between the carrymg amounts of assets and Irabrlrtres for ﬁnancral
reportmg purposes and’ the tax base. The followmg temporary drfferences are not. provrded for: the rnltral recoonrtron of
goodwrll or “of assets or Irabrlrtres that affect neither aocountrng nor taxable profit, that is not a busrness oombmatlon .and
temporary drfferences relatlng to mvestments in subSIdranes joint ventures and assomates where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference can be oontrolled and to the extent that itis probable- that the temporary drfference will not
revérse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provrded is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets ard liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantrally enacted at the balance
sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognrsed only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable proﬁts will be avarlable agarnst
which the asset can be utilised.

Segments ' '

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products, or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks, and returns that are different from
those segments operating in other economic environments.
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Exceptional items-and amortisation - IR :

Exceptional items and amortisation are excluded from undeﬂymg results in order to prowde a better understandmg of the
" normalised trading of the Group The Group consnders that such items would fall mto elther of two categones operatmg

exceptional items- ahd amortisation; and fihance exceptlonal items. o

The Group defines operating exceptiona! items and amortisation as items which derive either from events or transactions
'Ithat it considers fall outwith the ordinary activities of the Group or frem events or transacticns that fall within the ordinary
activities of the Group but which, individually or, if of a ‘similar type, in aggregate, need to be disclosed separately by virtue
of their size or incidence if the financial statements are fo give a true and fair view. Similarly, the Group defines finance
~'exceptional items as items which derive either from events or transactions that it considers fall outwith the ordinary
ﬁnancmg activities of lhe Group or from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary financing activities of the Group
buf which, individually or, if-of a similar type, in aggregate need to be disclosed separately by virtue of - thelr size or

5 it

: mcrdence |fthe ﬁnancral statemenls e.re to give a true and talr vrew . I KL
Events or transactrons lhal lhe Group would consider as falllng outwith its ordinary activities coutd mclude but are not
limited to: the revaluation and/or disposal of property, plant and equipment? the revaluation andfor disposal-of held-to-
maturity or available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value through profit and loss; the disposal andfor closure of
a business, jointly controlled operation or associate; and the costs of a fundamental reorganisation or restructuring. ‘Events
or transactions that the Group would consider as falling within its ordinary activities but which need to be disclosed
separately could include, but are not limited to: the amortisation and impairment of music copyrights and intangiblés; the
“impairment of goodwill; and the impairment of the cost of an investment in a business, jointly controlled operation or
__associate. Events or transactions that the Group would consider as falling outwith_its ordinary financing activities could
include, but are not limited to: gains or losses on the revaluation of derivative financial instruments; gains or losses on the
retranslation.of foreign cumency-denominated borrowings to the extent that they do not'provide a hedge against foreign
currency-denominated investments; and gains or losses from the ineffectiveness of the interest rate swaps hedge. Events
“or fransactions that the Group would consider as falling within its ordinary financing activities but which need to be

dlsclosed separately could include, but are not limited to, costs incurred as part of the Group's reﬁnalrvmg p.ogrammes

sent
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2007

1. Segmental analysis

At 31 March 2007 the Group is ‘organised on a ‘worldwide' baStS mto two maln bus:ness segments Musuc and Music

Publlshmg Thesé division's are thie basis on which the Group reports |ts pnmary se-gmenl mformatnon

P R A

__Results _ .-
: 2907 Y . 2008
N R EmMusfc “EMiMusic’  Total EMIMusic" EMI M= Tota
A 7T Publishing” " Toa WA Pubhshmg W
T vt Cold andkhg M 0t T e i s MEF L. S S et SR TS
R S B e v £m . Em . . - Em ~.Ern_ el £m sansd; 20y £m
R R R T A o Ty T U S U
Segment underlylng revenue -, 13502 . 4013 11,7515 16603 . . 419.6 20799
Segment exceptional revenue 2284 . 284 S6Beuve.- L oia-t o~ ot v
1,378.6 429.7  1,808.3 1,680. 419.6 2,078.9
w'oLne L Y N A AN TR e L e T e
Groupproft (Ioss)from operahons before- T T T Y S it -
exceplional ilems and amortisation i i, e v, o 449 -0 1056 1505 1451 1054-.. .- 2505
Segmental operating excephonal |Iemsand LI ;:.»: T T S A A T
o, amortisation: . vy g weier perine o0 _.‘?E" b 2 A Fn
.Amortlsanonofmusncoopynghtsand Yrmvinga oo L R
intangibles =~ - 0 et al el (9 6) . (43.1) v (52.1) - (3.8) (46.3) .- (499
 Other exceptional ttems R ;-i‘-;,. g e s (227 3 ..-(17.5) (2448),- -:.06:. (0.2 .o 04
_Segmental result, O B, (192 0) - 450 (147.0) . 1421 - .589 .7 2010
, Share of proﬁlfrcm assocnates oty e e 10 - 08 18 o1 .11 - 10
. Non- segmenta' operating exceptional :tems L C < o
. and amortisation:-, Py’ L LrEmt Lt L ( _)_ ' o - 38
. Group profit from operations 1.~ ;- ¢ o (186.7) 205.6
Total net finance charges (106.9) {87.5)
Profit (loss) before taxation {263.6) 1181
Taxation (23.4) {28.1)
Profit {loss) from continuing operations
after taxation (287.0) 90.0
Other segmental items included in the income statement include:
Depreciation {18.9) (2.9) (21.8)  (20.7) {2.9) (23.6)
Amortisation of music copyrights and
intangibles {3.4) #1.9) (45.3) (3.5} (44.3) (47.8)
Impairment of music copyrights and
intangibles {6.1) (1.2) {7.3) - (2.0) (2.0)
Impairment of goodwill 14.0 . 14.0 - - .
Headcount and roster reduction (130.1) (15.3)  (145.4) -
Impairment of tangible assels (115.9) (16.0)  (131.9) -
Write down of inventories (17.0) . (17.0) -
Provision for other liabilities (22.8) (0.3) {23.1) - - -
Impairment of property . - (0.9) (0.2) (1.1)
Release of overprovision for reorganisafion
costs changed in prior years . - - (2.3) - (2.3)
Reorganisation costs - - - 2.3 - 2.3




NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2007

2. Exceptional items and amortisation {continued)

The attributable taxation charge relating to operating exceptional items and amortisation is £9.6m (2006: £nil). The share

of the operating exceptional items and amortisation attributable to minority interests is £1.2m (2006: £0.1m).

(ii) Finance exceptional items

- 2007 - 2008
s' : — . - - -£m " Em
Fa|r value revaluatlon of oonvertlb!e bond derivative Ilablhty . (5 7) 41
Fair value cevaluation of interest rate swaps- © * ™" e , 5.2 14
Fair value revaluation of forward purchase of JFY ° o -3y -
Fair value revaluation of Eurobond call feature derivative asset . (21 J) 8.2
Foreign exchange on unhedged Euro borrowings 8.1 T 41)
Foreign exchange on unhedged foreign currency borrowings 3.0 0.3
Amortisation of fair value adjustment (US$500m 8.375% guaranteéd notes) (4.2) noe
Exceptional refinancing costs ' (1.1) - (8.2)
Total (17.3) 4.7
The attributable taxation charge refating to finance exceptional items is £nil {2006: £nil)/" " /= 1
3.. - Finance charges - R _
: 2007- " 2006
£m £m
Finance costs: )
Interest payable on bank overdrafts and loans 98.6 928
Interest payable on otherloans, ~ " . . =v L . L. 51, 74 .
Interest payable on finance leases 0.7 0.7
1044 100 9 -
Interest payacle on defined benefit pensmnfodxeme liabilities 482 - 487
L S 1 1526 - 1456
X - ] .- . ..zl'J_ . :-“A - i i,
Finance income: ‘ . _
Interest jeceivable on bank balances™ ™" - -7 Gt TS T .8 ©{2.1)
Other interest receivable ® """~ v 1. .. % e AR ¢ e (03)
{1.8) (2.4)
Expected retum from deﬁned benefit pensmn scheme assets (61.2) . '_(55.0)
Underlylng hnam.e charges _ ’_' o e ~ 2 (63.0) - (5‘7..4) :
Netﬁnanoecharges- R - 1896 922
Finance exceplional items (see Note 2) 17.3 - 4.7}
Total net finance charges 106.9 87.5




NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

as at 31 March 2007

1.  Segmental analysis

At k1 March 2007 the Group is organised on a ‘worldwide' basis mto two mam bJsrness segments Musrc and Musuc
Publlshrng Theésé divisions are the basis on which the Group reports |ts pnmary segment mformatron

__Results . o
_ 7 A ... 2006
o EMIMuslé ~ EMi Music Tot:al EMI Music” "IN ot
Togman e, s L TS Publrshing' i ‘ 2o T Pubiishtng .;. -
Ve [ 0, Yy oow? NPT vl oY o ‘_';{*!:'." R T
¥ . fs ' £m Em .. .Em | - £m .. .r Em RO TR 1) |
e VR B R " . S RN L -
Segment underlymg revenue - 01,3502 . 4013 1,751.5 16603 . ,4196 _ ,‘. 2,079.9
Segment exceptional revenue -284 . 284 568 .c.- - AR I
1,378.6 4297  1,8083 1.660.3 41 9 6 2,079.9
o A AR 5 Poa e TRy E LI L N N R T TR
Group proﬁt (loss) from operatlons beforer L e e O P
exceptional items and amortisation i . .« v - 449--- 1056 4505 1454, 1064~ .. .- 2505
Segmental operating exceptional items and Rl U N S PR S B
amomsallon BRI T N e e Tl . : Caget o
,Amortlsatlon of music oopynghts and £ p,qﬂ,n. T o R A SR
intangibles = Coamrad g 9 6) . (#31) . (52 .- (3.6) (46.3) (49.9)
Other exceptional |tems A no (227 3 .- (115 (24483, 06 . {0.2) 0.4
Segmental result - I BT (192.0) 450  (147.0) . 1424 -7 .589 .°  201.0
. Share of profit-frcm associates R U 10 . 08 1.8 {01 . 11 1.0
. Non-segmenta! operating exceptional items- - -» .. | n - - T oo C
.. and amortisationy;, i L rwng , - (11.5) ' '~ 36
.. Group profit from operations 1. - o {1560 . 2056
Total net finance charges {106.9) (87.5)
Profit {loss) before taxation {263.6) 118.1
Taxation (23.4) {28.1)
Profit {loss) from continuing operations
after taxation (287.0) 90.0
Other segmental items included in the income statement include:
Depreciation {18.9) (2.9) 1.8 (20.7) (2.9) (23.6)
Amortisation of music copyrights and
intangibles (3.4) (1.9) (45.3) (3.5) (44.3) (47.8)
Impairment of music copyrights and
intangibles (6.1) {(1.2) {7.9) - (2.0) (2.0)
Impairment of goodwill 14.0 - 14.0 - - -
Headcount and roster reduction (130.1) (13.3) (145.4) - - -
Impairment of tangible assets (115.9) (16.0) {131.9) - -
Write down of inventories {(17.0) - (17.0) - - -
Provision for other liabilities {22.8) {0.3) (23.1) - -
Impairment of property . - . {0.9) (0.2) (1.1)
Release of overprovision for reorganisation
costs changed in prior years - {2.3) - (2.3)
Reorganisation costs - 2.3 - 23




NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. -Segmental analysis (continued)

Assets and Iiabi[ities

. T T 2007 2006
nir . . e EMI Music  EMI Music Total EMIMusic EMIMusic Total
Publishing Publishing

) i £m £m £ £m tm Em
Segmentassets . 6289 457 10876 9263 5780 15043
Investment: associates ¢ - ' . 50 25 75 59 23 82
Unallocated assets : ' 403.4 : - 3045
Consohdated totalassets . e 1,485 . - 18170
Segmental labites | (7642)  (2764) (1,040.3) (898.1) (2824)  (1,180.5)
Unallocated liabilies =~ - - ' .0 .‘ (1,609.2) ) © o (1,363.1)
Consolldated total habllmes 3 (2,648.5) (2,543.6)

Oﬂ1ersegmenlitem5|ncluded |n the ba!ance sheetmclude - ' | '
: Py @ o N T T TR N ‘ N
Capital expenditure SO AT 00 T 255 - 88 43
Average employees (No.} 4,818 540 5 458 6 672_______640 6,312

e

|||||

aIIocated to the operatmg busmesses W e -,”, .
L o L L A o

The Groups two buqmess segments operate m Six maln geograpmcal areas even though they are managed on a
worldwide basis. ’ .

R T R I ST :.L T T ",:n;;..‘. 15
; . e o, 2001
s TR R T Unﬁed Rastal! Y BNt R Otﬁer P rotal’
" Kingdom %+ E!!ere’f‘”hrﬁerlca"*’ “America . ' Pacific™ * RS
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
fifhla 18 TG wrnettic o ..,w etk
Segment underlying revenue 2835 5704 481 ) ‘5174" 3.0 21 4 1,751, 5
_Segment exceptional revenue 5.6 8.1 1.2 36.9 5.0 - 56.8
: o 28941 5782 - 493~ 5543- 3160 - 214  1,8083
Segment assets co 2041 2581 363 4418 707 . 683 | 10876
Investment. associates , , . - 04 - 59 12 v e 75
Unallocated assets ... ., - - - e . < X
Consolidated total assets . 2041 2585 363 4475 804 .. 683 14985
Capital expenditure ) 11.4 -5.8 04. 109, . 24 08 31.7

v T

Average Employees (No.). 1079 1235° 266 1843 941 124 - 5458
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1. Segmental analysis {continued)

© .. 2006
United  Restof- -- Latin-- - -Morth - - - Asia ~  Otfer - Total
Kingdom  Europe _ Amerca  Amefica Pacific

’ Ern £m £m Em £m Em £m

A ) o ' . ‘
Segmentrevenue ~ "~ " ™ " - 348.0 " 630.2° 844" 6481 3388 ~ 294 20799
Segmentassets .. - 2671 2885 588 6675 1556 L,_768 15083
Investment: associates oo - 0.4 - 6.6 1.2 PR ---_ w2
Unallocated assets e - - - - e e e e 1, 3045
Consolidated total assets ’ 0 2671 2889 588 6641 156.8 76.8 1 817.0

T T R St
Capital expenditure ‘ 2. 153 6.9 06 8.7 22 ¢ 06 343.
Tt .i :!‘_ Y ] w0 . "'.“J‘.‘l praee
A\:erage Employees {No.) T 7T 1,200 1,393 I 2034 1241 132 6, 312

B ot L0
Unallocated assets and liabilities include financial derivatives, oorporahon tax, deferred tax and net borrowmgs These
items are managed centrally. and are-nol-allocaled tc the operating businesses. . :

“%

.
R . . ,

2 Exceptlonal items and amortrsatlon

Exceptional items arfd amortisation are excioded from underlylng results in order to prowde a better understanding of the
normalised trading of the Group, and include operating exceptional items and amortisation and finance exceptional items.
The Group has responded lothe unprecedented decline in the global markets for phys:cal product by implementing a
series of strateglc Témeties, The cst of thesé rémedies in ‘accounting térms is as reported below. Amongsl the strateg:c
remedies are headcount and roster reductions and a change in estimating methodology for advances.

Cenam other fransactions, are reporged below becauvse they fall within the Group’s definition of Exceptional items and
amortlsanon as per the accountmg nolicies sectton of the. fi nanc:al staterrents
.~ R “ w” ar? L
(i) Operatlng exceptional items and amortisation o
ST S S — Taomr VT e

L i .- s s L m o e T o
B \

- st . .. et B T ‘-£n"f'

f - . IV [ .. ELS

Restructuring and reorgamsatron costs

Headcount and roster redugon ¥ e (140.4) et
Impairment of goodwill « * * : : ‘ (@59) <7 T
Impairment of tangible assets .. .~ P PIEP | K1 9) 1’ . -
Write down of inventories .. .t LR T L sl L L L (IT0) B
Provision for other liabilities (42.4) .
Reorganisation costs in respect of pnor year reorganlsatron programmes .- A )
Release of overprovision for reorganisation costs charged in pnor years . . 2.3
Income from Bertelsmann litigation settlement” . = - .. ..568 . .0tk
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 50.2 1.5
Gain on disposal of business . 1.0
Gain {loss) on revaluation to fair value of invesiments at fair value

through profit and loss {(0.2) 26
Property impairment - (1.1
Amortisation and impairment of music copyrights and intangibles (52.m) {49.9)
Cost incurred in connection with the possible fransaction with Wamer )

Music Group (6.4) -
Costs of defending abortive bid approach (1.2) -
Total {309.0) (45.9)

+ Impairment of goodwill includes £1,1m (2006: £nil} relating to goodwill in associates.
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2.  Exceptional items and amortisation {continued)

The attributable taxation charge relating to operating exceptiona! items and amortisation is £3.6m (2006: £nil). The share
of the operating exceptional items and amortisation attributable to minority interests is £1.2m (2006: £0.1m).

(i) Finance exceptional items

_ 2007 © 2006
_ - - -Em . - fm
Fair value revaluation of convertible bond derivative Ilab:hty _ (5 7 4.1
Fair value ;evaluation of interest rate swaps- = ™" SR R ¥ 14
Fair value revaluation of forward purchase of JPY S L
Fair value revaluation of Eurobond call feature derivative asset . . e e - (21.3) - 82
Foreign exchange on unhedged Euro borrowings 84 o {4.1)
Foreign exchange on unhedged foreign currency barrowings 30 . 0.3
Amortisation of fair value adjustment (US$500m 8.375% guaranteéd notes) = " '+ (4 2) ~
Exceptional refinancing costs - (1.1) ' - (5.2)
Total {17.3) 47

The attributable taxation charge refating to finance exceptional items is £nil (2006: £nity.” -~ /* -

3. - - Finance charges L . . . .
‘ o , o e T 00

£m £m
Finance costs: : ]
Interest payatle on bank overdrafts and loans 98.6 92.8
Interest payable onotherfoans = . _ " v .. . L. X R ¥ T
Interest payahle on finance leases 0.7 0.7
104.4 009
Interest payan!e on defined benefit pensmn‘ot.heme liabilities 482 ' Uil 4R
' L M ave L . ... 1528 - ive - 1486
- . o :;\.J_ _ .L '" B . A
Finance income: . _
Intarest receivable on bank baldnces"" "~ - v ST LT we o)
Other interest receivable ~ '™ o T o St e et et T et -~ (03)
(1.8) : o (2.4)
Expected return from defined benefit pensmn scheme assets (61.2) {55.0)
Underlylnghnam.e charges AT e e 63.0) " (514
[SEEC BT | f ] A B L A
Netfinancecharges®  ~ " vt e L I
Finance exceptional items (see Note 2} R | & 4N

Total net finance charges 106.9 87.5
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as at 31 March 2007 A " o
7 B - ! l.,_ e ! ;‘.. "+
4.  Taxation A .
e . : T AU el W T R el T el T onap
£m £m
Current tax e o - 152 ] T 238
Deferred tax ) ) 8.2 4.3
- - "23'4 ) A
V- % A AT ST YIS s !
The tax on the Group's pruﬁt before tax differs from the theoretlcal amount that would arise usmg the welghted a».erage
tax rate applicable to proﬁtn of the consoclidated oompan:es as follows: L R Yi o ithe
Profit before tax > o (263 6) R Ty
Tax calculated at domestic‘_ratgs applicable to profits in the respectiv'é{-" ;“,‘ ’; o . '(96 5) : ,—-A -45.‘8.
countries at 36.6% (2006: 38.8%) 7 o _ PR
S -
Effectsof: ~ o T
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ;;; OO TS . DA 924 com e 198
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax Iosses (2.3) (42.3)
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax asset was recognised 51.5 16.9
Adjustment in respect of prior years A . :(11.8)
Total tax charged in the Inicome Statement ~ ' ] ) 23.4 ' 28.1

5.  Dividends {equity)

007 .. 2006 , ., 2007 2006
Per share Pe'share' -+ ... 8m . - .. £m

i t O N LA B
Ordinary dividends: =~ T;",} Tt s rmme e R o
2006/2005 final dividend ;- e B8R e 80P s oy ATE .. 1472
2006/2005 lnterlm diVldel“Id oo 20p T T 20p 0 s 0 157
Total _ T oot T T 'sp 0 BOp 0 832 0 T 629

The interim dividend of 2.0p per share was paid on 3 April 2006 to shareholders-on the register at the close of bus ness on
13 January 2006. The final dividend of 6. Op per share was pald on 2 October 2006 to shareholders on.the register at the
close of business on 21 July 2006.
AR

An interim dividend of 2. 0p per Ordlnary Share"was pald on 2 Apnl 2007 to share-ho]ders on the register at the close of
business on 12 January 2007. As announced ‘on” 18 April 2007, the Board has decided to suspend furthier dividend
payments until the benefits of the restructuring process, announced on 12 January 2007, have been fully realised. The
Board will keep the situation under re\new L e e T
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_6. . Eamings per Ordinary share

2007 .. 2006
' ; SO
- Eamings per Ordinary Share is calculated using the following: e L
- Eamings R i v £(2885)m. . . . £86.1m
" Underlying eamings £462m .. - £1274m
,_Basu: s Yooaatere e .
__Welghted average number of Ordmary Shares 794 8m 786.8m
_Dlluted T ’ . ' o '
. Adjusied welghted average number of Ordinary Shares U ] ~ 7948m 874.2m
Diluted underlying -, T et e e
Adjusted welghted average number of Ordinary Shares ) 802 4m , 874.2m

'The ad;usted welghted average number of Ordinary Shares used in thie "diluted underlying earnings per share

calculations, 802.4m (2006: 874.2m), is the weighted average number of Ordinary shares, 794.8m (2006 786. Bm\ :
adjusted by the effects of dilutive share options, 7.6m (2006: 8.5m). Lol

The number of Ordinary Shares arising from the conversion of convertible bond options,.78.9m (2006: nil), is not
included in the calculation of the diluted underlying eamings per share because of its anli-gilutive effect. However, it
was included in the calculation of the diluted earnings per share calculation in" 2006 because of its drluhve effect. It is
also excluded in the calculation of diluted eamings per share in 2007 because itis antr—dllutwe

Reconciliation of adjusted earnings

Year ended 31 March 2007 Year ended 31 March 2006

s_m _ PerShare ' Em .' Pér Share
lEamlngslbasrc Eps e );;" ok ’:m . I@@:;)p}*; o 861 10 %
‘ Dl!ulrveadjustments AR . p : PR ‘L“. g e m,,._, v

“Convertible bond - attribitable intercist Gost ang” " - | ¢ LRI T AL T SO g (0 )

dilution '

Dilutive share options - dilution . 0.0p . {01p

. Eamings adjusted for effects of dilution / diluted EPS (288.5) . (363p . . . 915 . 10.5p

lmmmmmdmmmmmmmqmmmmmwm o S U SR v

. AT K R T R Tol s L A vaaTe vty LT 8

Reconcrhatron from bas:c to underlylng basic and underlylng_dlluted eammg_ per share o

' “Year erided 31 March 2007 o Yearended 31 March 2006

T e £m ‘Per Share " £m " "Per Share

Eamtngsfbasm EPS - v T "‘('zea.'s)“' L {38.3)p o8, T 109

Exceptional items and amortisation: oo e B

" Operating excepticnal items and attributable taxation 2508 31.6p (.07 . _{05p

"Amortisation of music copyrights and intangibles © 454 . 570 479 7 61p

Impairment of music copyrights and intangibles ' 13 0.9p 20 - 0.3p

Impairment of goodwill 154 1.9p ) - 0.0p

Minority interest in operating exceptional items and 10y, . o) 04 0.1p

attributable taxation ' -

Minority interest in amortlsahon of music copynghts ) (0.2) (0.1)p (0.3) {0.1)p

and intangibles ' _ ! '

Finance exceptional items ' ‘ 173 2.2p (4.7 {0.6)p
Underlying earnings / underlying basic EPS 45.2 5.8p 127.4 16.2p
Dilutive adjustments:

Convertible bond- atiributable interest cost and dilution . . 95 {0.4)p

Dilutive share options - dilution - 0.0p - {0.13p
Underlying eamings adjusted for effects of dilution / 45.2 5.8p 136.9 15.7p

underlying diluted EPS
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7. Financial liabilities

A -
'I'ji.)‘ e

2007 2006
: £m £m
Non-current o _ 3 ,
US$500m 8.375% guaranteed notes %20 287.7
£325m 8.25% Sterling bonds R TR 7 X1 3231
US$243.3m 5.25% guaranteed convertible bonds 109.4 Lo 21
€425m 8.625% senior notes** 2801 ° " 300.0
Long-term committed facilities — term loan * . o 245.3 R )
Term ioan R B JWrTel et TR AWETL T 0 90
1,2108 '1,032.4
Finance leases _ o i 158-':"'".‘-.“' 570
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge 88+ - 138
Convertible bond derivative - . S 816 Y '86.7
1,317.0 1,149.7
SR AL BOLRPRN HERPERS & B ) N D S T
Current Do e lmi L AR et oo L
Overdrafts s o O - 9.5 1196
Term loan ’ _ . - . 12
Forward-currency contracts R B LR HE T A
Finance leases - = ™" e TN RIS L e ‘ 13 ' 18
R i 123 226
Lt vauled -t
Total financial liabilities 1,329.3 1,172.3

Indudes lssueeostsufsyndlcatedbaﬂauhtynfﬁﬂm(m £1 Sm) ; PR T

' . .
PR AL

!nieres! raté swaps

The hotional pnncnpal amounts of-the outstandmg interest rate swap contracls at 31 March-2007-were £542.9m (2008:
£586.2m). At 31 March 2007 the fixed interest Jfatgs vary from 8.38% to 8.63% (2006: 8.38% to.8.63%).and the main
ﬁoatmg rates are 3month LIBOR%'465 basis pdmts and 3 month EURIBOR + 44() basis points (2006 3 month LIBOB +
465 basis pomts and 3 month EURIBOR + 440 basis points ). The falr va[ue of the mterest rate swaps |s equal to the book
valus, FoE s

NN - “ft'.;" ., 'I:', ’.“- _*5‘ &

Convemble bond - - .- %7 _ - : e :

The US$243.3m 5.25%. guaranteed oonvertlble tSonh whlch was |ssued |n October 2003 is repayable in October 2010
The bonds are convertible into US$1,000 Preference’ Shares of the issugr which ‘will be exchangeabie immediately upon
issue for Ordinary Shares in the Company. The number of Ordinary Shares for which a Preference Share may be
exchanged will be determined by dividing the. paid-up, value of the Preference Share, iranslated into-Sterling at.the. fixed
rate of US$1.5957, by: the exchange price mxtrally set at 193.38p per Ordmary Share.” Conversion by the'héldér at 193.38p
per Ordinary Share’ may occur after 11 November 2003 untit seven days prior to the final redemption date. Conversion by
the issuer, after-16-October 2007 -of alt but-not ‘part, may occur if the average price per Ordinary Share on at least 20
dealing days in any period of 30 consecutive dealing.days has been 130p; or at any time if 85% or more of the aggregate
principal amount has been prevrousiy purchased redeemed or cancelled. Redemphon by the i issuer, after 16 Qctober
2007, may occur if the same aggregate principal. amount has been. prewously purchased redeemed or cancelled.
Redernphon by the holder, after 16 October 2007, may occur if the same. conditions wh|ch apply Jo conversmn by the
issuer are met. Flnal redemption is pn 2 October 2010 at 100% of prmcupal and aocrued mlerest

AURCATAe TS BRI

EER R e ot LI
L) [ VP N

Convertible bond derivative .

On issue of the guaranteed convertiblé bond, thé fanr value of the I|abtl|ty component was determmed usnng a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. As the convertible bond is denominated in US Dollars but convertible into Sterling
shares, the remainder of the proceeds were allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included as a
derivative liability, net of issue costs. The value of the call feature is revalued to fair value at each balance sheet date, with
movements in the fair value reflected as finance costs or finance income.

Forward Currency Contract

In Becember 2006 the Company entered into an agreement to purchase Tashiba's 45% minority interest in its subsidiary,
Toshiba-EMI Limited. Given the Group's policy nol to hedge trading transaction exposure apart from materially large one-
off items that have a high degree of certainty of occurring, this iarge firm commitment was hedged by means of a forward
currency contract.
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7.  Financial liabilities {contmued)

Revofwng Credrf Facrfmes
In March 2007 the Group replaced its existing £450m revolvrng credit facility with a new £700m credit facility due 20th May
2009. The new credit facrhty also prowdes the ﬁnancmg for the purchase of the TOEMI minority and the costs associated
with the restructuring project, This resulted in exceptronal refinancing costs of £1.1m (2006 £5 2m) in respect of the write
off of i |ssue costs of fhe £450m revolwng credlt facmty

. ’ RETLY i . Hoot o

e

Borrowings under the new £700m credit facility are'govemed by certain financial covenants “baséd on the résults and
financial position of the Group, mctudmg the requirement that the mterest coverage ratio and the leverage ratio (each as
defiried in the crédit agreement) remain within'certain limits. The covenants are tested for the prior twélve month penod
as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The Group is currently in compliance with both covenants,

The new £700m credit fadiity hés two tranches, a £400m ferm Ioan facility aid & £300m fevolving credit facility. The term
loan of £245.3m was drawn under the new credil facility in March 2007 (2006: July 2004 to December 2005). One single
repayment will be made in May 2009. The loan carries a floating rate of interest, whose  margin over LIBOR is determined
by a ieverage ratio grid (net borrowmgleBtTDA as defined in the credit facility), currently set at LIBOR + 2.5%. In March
2006 there was a term toan of £3 2m drawn under a separate facility whrt:h Was prepatd and canoelled dunng the year h

TP P o, LA

B It il . v
-‘f,'_?-. ,r Lot

 Other fi nant:raf ftabrfmes ‘ oo '
"On 11 March 2003 Moody's Investor Service downgraded the G‘r‘oup’s credrt ratfng from Baa2 to Ba1. As a consequence
the ooupon of the £325m 8 25% Sterling bonds was mcreased from 8 25% to 9 75% wrth effect from 20 May 2b05

At 31 March 2007 the Group had available £452.3m {2006: £437. 1m) of undrawn committed borrowmg facilitids in respect
of which all conditions precedent had been met.

All the Group's financial liabilities (excluding finance leases) are unsecired. -

R . [P - T

Year ended 31 March 2007 : - - R I S R I
Cument Effocthvg Within 1 1-2 years 2-3years 34 years 45years  Momethan5s Total
couponrate  interastrata yeor years
o fm £m [ £m 2] Em £m
3 Ty L DT
Fiud Rate : e
USEE00m 8.375% guarmteednotes BITSH - --—949%- - - e e e e 2500 D E R 741
£325m 8.25% Sterfing bonds 9.75% 9.92% . 340 . . . . I 0_
US$242.3m 5.25% guaranteed St e s e
converible bonds - 525% - 9X% .. - . . 1094 - L - 1094
€425m 8.625% senior notes B625% ° 8.94% . . - - ’ < A 280.1
Finance leases .. ) 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 -+ 16/ 100 . 111
-~ . 13 3253 /34 . 109 X 9826
Floating rate '
Overdrafts f,:i : 9.5 R VR LR o' SO -7 9.5
Term ioan . . . - S A - .83
interest rate swaps - Iongtermoonmtments DR . e Xy oL T e 1
Forwand ourrencyoonm . - L 15 - - - - - 15
i ) ) 110 Co T 507 . . i 14 265.1
Year ended 31 March 2006 . L .
« Curent ~ Effective Within 1 1-2 years 2-lyears T yoars 45years  Morethan S o Tod
' coupon ratr | interest rate year ot < Cyears | . '
-Em £m fm £m tm £m £m
Non-ctrrent " " N .
LIS$500m 8.375% guarantesd notes BaT5% - B.49% - - - 2877 - - wrr
£325m 8.25% Sterling bonds 9.75% 9.92% - - 31 - - I 3234
US$243.3m 5.25% guarantesd 5.25% 9.30% . - - . 13111 - 1211
coavertible bonds .
€425m B.625% senior notes 8.625% 8.94% - - . - - 3000 300.0
Long-term committed facilities* - - - - {1.5) - (1.5)
Finance leases : 18 18 19 19 1.6 98 18.8
18 18 3250 2094 1212 3048 1.049.2
Floating rate .
Overdrafts 196 - - - - - 196
Termfoan 1.2 20 - - - - 32
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedge (excluding accrued interest) - - - - - 136 136

208 20 - . - 136 364
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7. - Financial liabilities (continued) - - R

Creditrisk . "‘:I-n ; i UK
The Groups pnncrpal ﬁnancral assets are bank balances, cash and trade and other recewables Y NN e

The Group's credit nsk is pnmanly ahnbutable to its trade and other recelvables The amounts presenfed m the balanoe
sheet are net of allowances for doubtful debts. Such an allowance is fiade where theré is an identified 0S5 event which,

based on previous expenence |s ewdenoe of.a reducuon in the reooverablhty ofthe debt.. . ,_‘, b LT
The credit rlsk on bank balanoes is |Iﬂ1|ted because the counterpames are f nancral mstrtutlons wuth hrgh credlt ratlngs
assigned by mtemabonal credrt ratrng agencres L

The Group has no sigpificant concentratron of credlt nsk wrth exposure, spread over a large number of geograph:cal[y
drspersed oounterpar'ﬂes Lt ) ; Ko i'_..i.‘\ R P TR IL S S

wiao gl PR T

Nef invéstment i in forergn operatrons N Jl,‘
During the year the Group borrowed Japaneee Yen totalhng JPY 22 300m wnth a cdrryrng value of £107 1m m March 2007
all of these borrowings were repard In Apnl 2006 borrowmgs of JPY 11,500m (£55.8m) were desrgnated as a hedge of the
Group's net investment in its Japanese subsidiaries, hedging the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on these
investments. Upon repayment in March 2007 the, borrowrngs were. dedemgnated €s a hedge and the gain on retranstation
of the biorrowing hedge transferred tc equrty to oh‘set the Ioss on translahon of the net investment in the Japanese
subsidiaries, whilst the translation galn on'the remalnlng borrowrngs (£3.0m) was irnmediately recognised in proﬁt and loss

(ﬂnanceexcepttonal rtems) s paseer veen Tt

Fair values of financial assets and liabilifies

The fair value of publicly traded borrowings has been calculated using the appropriate market prices at the balance sheset
date. For the borrowings which are not publicly traded, the fair valug has been calculated by discounting their future cash
ﬂows at the approprlate market rale. The directors estimate the fair value of the Grcup's borrowmgs fo be as follows: .

s ; cae b 200

- - L Bookv.llue P Fair value
T T mmmTmE e Ut wed T Tw0e 0 T 2007 2006
£m £Em £m -8
R \*‘ - .. 00D - . 1 ) ".‘- :-: :x .-"r.‘:.:f. f e
Financial assets . _ P e
Held-to-maturity investments ™ ' ) j 32 " 79, 32 .07 .78
Available-for-sale-investments _+ b : v 18 Y 2 IR 7 : SR |
interest rate swaps — fair value hedge (exctudlng aocrued SRR R | K R - = ... . Mo
interest) e
€425m 8.625% senior notes embedded call feature - .91 30.3 9.1 : 30.3
Investments at fair value throughi profitand loss 0.2 0.3 . 0.2 0.3
) 203 86 ., . . 203 - . 566
Financial liabilities
Loans and overdrafts . . 9.5 196 95 71986
US$500m 8.375% guaranteed notes o ) 2520 - 2877. : 266.0 306.0
£325m 8.25% Sterling bonds ' 324.0 3231 - - 3374 - - 3480
US$243.3m 5.25% guaranteed convertible bonds 109.4 1211 119.4 1335
€425m 8.625% senior notes ) 2801 3020 3239 : - 36841
Long-term committed facilities ' - {1.5) . (1.5)
Term loan 2453 3.2 245.3 32
Finance leases 174 138 - 174 18.8
Interest rate swaps , : 8.8 13.6 88 13.6
Foreign currency contract 15 - 1.5 -
Caonvertible bond derivative 81.6 86.7 81.6 86.7
1,329.3 1,1723 1,410.2 1,296.0

Fair value hedges

The Group holds equivalent US Dollar nominal value interest rate swaps matching the coupon and the term of the
US$500m 8.375% guaranteed notes effectively converting the interest basis of the: issue to floating rate (set in arrears).
See Nole 15 for the derivative portion of the borrowing. From 1 April 2008, this swap was designated as a hedge for hedge
accounting purposes.




NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at 31 March 2007

1. Financial liabilities {continued)

The Group holds equivalent Euro nominal value interest rate swaps matchlng the' OOUpon and the term of the €425m
8.625% senior notes effectively converting the interest basis of the issue to fioating rate (set in arears).

8. _ Other provisions for liabilities and charges

T P MUCTEREE I TN T AR « " Awquisbion - ' Disposaland -
S N Bt 4 TP R S -Employee - . 7). .and . furdameantal
Trading .- Benefits -, intzgrafion. .. -, reorganisation ; . TJotal,
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2006 27.2 08 5.1 04 335
Currency retranslation (2.6) - - - (2.6)
Provisions utilised (85.1) (©.3) (4.5) {0.1) (70.0)
Charged (released) 150.0 0.2 - {0.2) 150.0
At 31 March 2007 4095 . e QT 0.6 0.1 110.9
Current portion:
At 1 April 2006 212 . .. 08 a1 0.4 335
At 31 March 2007 1085 ‘07 0.6 0.1 110.9
Total: :
At 1 April 2006 27.2 0.8 5.1 0.4 335
At 31 March 2007 1095 . .- 07 0.6 0.1 110.9
Trading ' . - TN

Trading provisions include royalty audit charged through profit from operatrons before operating exceptional items and
amortisation. They also include restructuring and reorganisation provisions charged through operating exceptional items.

o N P . N . - . At
A T R R T T A ST TR DU b SR

. Enlpfoy‘e'ebenems P L A | J I P UV R

. This,provision relates (0 long term benefits and termination Bengfits, s, o B
. Disposal and fundamental reorganisation, , ;. . . "
This provision relates to the reorganlsatron costs for the closure andlor sale of EMl's manufactunng busmesses |n North
America and Europe. N S I :

- Acquisition and integration  © s 0 i . e o W cre T e

This provision relates to acquisition and integration costs that were created for earnouts. Earnouts are contractual
commitments under which the seller of a business is enlitled to -additioral” future compensation ‘based if the acquired
business achieves certain future financial targets.

I Y S L LN



Regulatory Announcement

LT e T M A Ref: 82"’373

Go to market news section i %
Company Terra Firma lavestments (GP)ZLtd T B A
TIDM e ram - - - e . - - - - .- PR S, . - =L I .
Headline . Recommended Cash Offer T T T R, T I T TIE R
Released 16:22 21: May-OT C s el e vl L e
Number 9752w )
Svcese o " " FOR IMMEDIATE REEEASE

NOT FOR RELEASE, PUBLICATION.OR DISTRIBUTION IN WHOLE OR IN PART IN, INTO OR FROM
ANY JURISDICTION WHERE TO DO SO WOULD CONSTITUTE A VIOLATION OF THE RELEVANT
LAWS OR REGULATIONS OF SUCH JURISDICTION '

21 May 2007
i T -
iy s T T s T Recommended cashoffer - l SO
for e
hE i o EMI Group ple
by i
o] g . C
' N Maltby Limited S
a company formed at the direction of Terra Firma
11 s Bt Bv T IS T LTI L oo T U P
Summary T T T P s e S AP AR T

®  The board of directors of Maltby and Directors of EMI are pleased to announce the terms of e._'reeep}n}epded cash of
*  Maltby is a newly-incorporated company formed e\ti'i‘iie1:c;iir'e:cé't:idﬁ 8f Terra F‘fnna‘f"(‘;r1 tﬁép&po;e“of mgakmqgthe Offer.

° EMI is one of the world’s leadlng musm compames comprising EMI Musn: ‘one of the top g]obal l‘ecorded musw ¢
i L S S I S N P R St SN W IC RN Tl B NI M l'a”"-’."

...',—.,.:--_- .
(RS NH IR i

. The price of 265 pence for each EMI Share represents:

*a premlum of 13. 2 per cent. to 234 pence belng the average Closmg Price per EMI Share over’ the -one month pe

d

ot [T e 2 at il A TN . ll,‘ 1.7 . _'l

. a premmm of 19 4 per cent. fo, 222 pence bemg the Closmg Price per EMI Share on 19 Februar) 2007 the Busii

moay e

1, e v

¢ The board of Directors of EMI, which has been so advised by Greenhlll con51ders the terms ‘of the Offer to be fair ai
e Commenting on today's announcement, Guy Hands, Chief Executive Officer of Terra Firma Capital Partmers Limite:
“Terra Firma is delighted that the Board has decided to recommend its Offer. Terra Firma's objective is to build on
¢ Commenting on the Offer, John Gildersleeve, Chairman of EMI, said:
“The global music industry is undergoing significant change and, whilst EMI is confident in its ability to deliver its r-
e  Dresdner Kleinwort is acting as financial adviser and corporate broker to Teira Firma and Maltby.
This summary should be read in conjunction with the following announcement and the Appendices.
Appendix I sets out the Conditions and certain further terms of the Offer. Appendix 11 contains source notes relating to ce
Enquiries:

Dresdner Kleinwort (financial adviser and corporate broker to Terra Firma

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 21.5.07




oo . .t - ERNE SR D

and Malthy) . Tel: +44 (0320 7623 8000

Bruce Maclnnes

) L o . Y
Sean Watherston .. . T T NN T P RO o
Eoin Moore  w-niect e, RTREETR YO P
Julian Smith (Broking). .. - S0 I :
Financial Dynamics {public relations adviser to Terra Firma'and - N
Maltby)y « -+ o o e T e : © 7 "-Tel: +44 (0) 20 7831 3113
Andrew Dowler . e o
Ben Foster’ ~ "t SRR .
EMF PR R A T T BN R L A P e

Amanda’ Coniroy (Corporate Comfnunications) "Tel: +44 (0)20 7795 7529

PippaStong (vedior Relationsy | © © |t AT e e 0708 76t
.. . e L1 . PR S O L '._-,-‘_,' M " -..-\'I ~t, i P . 4 r
Greenhill (lead financial adviser to EMI) Tel: +44 (0)20 7198 7400
Simon Borrows
- . . ) B [ R SR AP R Y A U APRT NP S ; .
PeterBel! = - -, T L A LA DA M I R ST
S A O S I L O IR
Citi (financial adviser and corporate broker to EMI) " Tel +44 {0)20 7986 4000
Matthew Smith
. b ta ta.

Andrew Seaton

Tom Reid MET IS A

Deutsche Bank (financial adviser and corporate broker tf(:)‘EMI) Tel: +44 ()20 7545 8000

Guy Hayward-Cole : T

Charlie Foreman . , o1, . o

Toby Clark

Brunswick Group LLP {public relations adviser to EMI) Tel: +44 (()20 7404 5959

Alan Parker, . ... ., ..., ... R T T PR T St e e e
Patrick Handley :: + .. - ;. e la T P NN PR TR PO BT C ) e

This announcement is not intended to and does not constitute, or form part of, an offer 1o sell or invitation to purchase or
Dresdner Kleinwort is acting exclusively for Terra Firma and Maltby and no-one else in connection with the Offer and w
Greenhill, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is acting exclusi
Citi, which is authorised and regulated in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is acting exclusively fi
Deutsche Bank is authorised under German Banking Law (Competent authority: BaFin — Federal Financial Supervising .
The availability of the Offer to persons who are not resident in the UK may be affected by the laws of the relevant jurisdic

The release, publication or distribution of this announcement in jurisdictions other than the UK may be restricted by law
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Any person (inciuding, without fimitation, any cusiodian, nominee and trustee) who wouia, or olnerwise inlends 16, or wh
This announcement does not constitute, or form part of, any offer for, or any solicitation of any offer for securities, nor is
The Offer is being made for securities of a UK company and United States investors should be aware that this announcen
The Offer will be made in the United States pursuant to applicable US tender offer rules and otherwise in accordance wit.
The receipt of cash pursuant to the Offer by a United States holder of EMI Shares may be a taxable transaction for Unite
EM1 is incorporated under the laws of England and Wales. A majority of the EMI Directors are residents of countries oti
In accordance with the City Code and normal UK market practice and pursuant to class exemptive relief granted by the'S
This announcement, including information included or incorporated by reference in this announcement, may contain:"for
Dealing Disclosure Requirements PR
Under the provisions of Rule 8.3 of the City Code, if any person is, or becomes, "interested"” (directly or indirectly) in 1%
Under the provisions of Rule 8.1 of the City Code, all "dealings" in "relevant securities” of EMI by Maltby or EMI, or by
A disclosure table, giving d‘e_tai{;.of the companies in whose "relevant securirie.s_‘ "~ "q'ealings " shpgld lb|e 41‘.s;.c1_q,_sed,'_qnd the

"Interests m securatzes arise m summary, when a person has long economic exposure, wherher condmonal or absolute

[ 1,.“‘.;-1.

Terms in quotanon markf are d’ef ned in the City Code, which can also be found on the Panel 's websue If you are m 1 any

NOT FOR RELEASE, PUBLICATION OR DISTRIBUTION IN WHOLE OR IN PART IN, INTO OR FROM
ANY JURISDICTION WHERE TO DO SO WOULD CONSTITUTE A VIOLATION OF THE RELEVANT
LAWS ORREQULA;I'IO'NS OF SUCH JURISDICTION

o 21 May 2007
Recommended cash offer o
for
EMI Group ple
A T T i‘;!l’_f.».t-;)}r R N T S R TR UCI
Maltby Limited
a company formed at the direction of Terra Firma
1. Introduction * - Fo e e i e Ty et
The board of directors of Maltby and the Directors of EMI are pleased to announce the terms of a recommended cash offe
Maltby is a newly-incorporated company formed at the direction of Terra Firma for the purpose of making the Offer.
2. The Offer - T A BRTRS
Under the terms of the Offer, which will be subject to the Conditions and other terms set out in this announcement and to
For each EMI Share »* * 265 pence in cash
The terms of the Offer value the entire issued and to be issued share capital of EMI at approximately £2.4 billion and repr
s  apremium of 13.2 per cent. to 234 pence, being the average Closing Price per EMI Share over the one month period

e  apremium of 19.4 per cent. to 222 pence, being the Closing Price per EMI Share on 19 February 2007, the Business
As first announced in the trading update issued by EMI on 18 April 2007, the board of EMI has decided to suspend divid¢
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3. 'Background to and réasons for the Offer '
As one of the world’s largest music companies with leading market positions in both recorded music and music publishin:
Térra Firma believes the rapid migration fromi physical to‘diéita! and online formats represents a 16hg-term growth opport

Through its experience of previous investments and its access to significant capital resources, Terra Firma bélieves it is w

[ L ¢

4, Recommendation

The board of Directors of EMI, which has been $o 'adi!'isédrbst Greenhill, considers the ferms of the Offer to be fair and rez
'R AR €y et Ve B, N FERRT P - Voo B . .

Accordingly, the board of Directors of EMI intends fo recomriiend unanimously that EMI Shareholders should accept the

Greenhill, Citi and Deutsche Bank are acting as joint financial advisers to EMI. Citi and Déutsche Bank Have an existing

* L ..
LU [

P o

5. ) Baekérdhnd 'tti, a'nli'rta'asbir’s' for, the recnmmehdation
The business fundamentals of the global music industry have changed eignjﬁcantly dv’ér'the last few y‘e'ars".' 'I:{e'venues fro
Duting the last twelve months, trading conditions in the industry have t;ee'nvv‘er:)'r Challériging, 'particu'iarlj'r'i‘n recofded mus
Over the last twelvé months, the Boird of EMI'has réceived’ number'st p'rri)'p'dsa‘I'S from several different:partié's regardin

N I LY Lo I T (T T T Y - Do e IESL
In deciding to recommend the Offer, the Board of EMI has taken into actolnt a numbér of factors, including that:

s

) the Offer of 265 pence per EMI Share represents

‘o a premium of approxrmately 19.4 per cent to 222 pence bemg the C]osmg Price per "EMI Share on 19

T RN A AL TT I
o a prermum of approxrmately 13.2 per cent 'to 234 pence, bemg the average Closmg Pnce per EMI Shar

O an enterpnse value of approximately £3.2 billion which is a multlple of approxrmately 18.5 x earnings |
. N f, . -, L P T Y T L, .
. the terms of the Offer allow EMI Shareholders to reahse certain cash now mther than face the contmumg uncert:

. . r . ‘ r. - .
e, 3 , T L T O L I Sy i . T T A, 0,

. the combmatlon of the value of the Offer, its delrverabrhty and the minimum of operational nsk to the business
h I PR B L :..,r}b’( p PR L N lr.','.rn P e J[i Yol 1!'
6. Irrevocable undertakmgs

LI LY} E I TPAP St R A B UL SO DY) SPLARE] e Y

Maltby has recerved irrevocable undertakmgs from all of the EMI Directors with beneﬁcml holdings of EMI Shares to ac¢
R ," o e .‘f o R ITTCA TR L T LT P S LU PEE P (AR RE I + SRS N J, LPE P R AT LAY LT SR B I ;_"”..-__",'.

Further details of these 1rrevocable undertakmgs mcludmg the circumstances in which they cease to be bmdmg, are set ot

e TR L O . P LA e ",,..r.’uul AT s alie, o 0 r !

7. Information on EMI
I PR TS LE  R A R TV I e R T !

EMI is one of the world’s leading musrc compames operating directly in 50 countries and with licensees in a further 20 c

Pl e S A . [T ERVLER TR 1 e T T T R L L

Em! Mus:c
. el R R At NCRIE 1% Al NSRS AL ! :
EMI Musrc is one of the largest recorded music busmesses global]y, with a roster of approxrmately 1 ,300 artlsts encompa

‘e . - PP - oo o . +
VIS EIR PRI S T P I St et s g .‘.~.,,,|-

EMI Mustc is at the forefront of the development of the drgrtal music segment and is expenencmg rapld growth in dlgltal
L TN PR AT S

'V"l‘ FIO T SIS I I,

EMI Mus:c Pubhshmg .

* o P L ' P Y T BT [7 PRPPEERE ST sy N R . ,

EMI Musrc Publishing is the world’s largest music publisher in terms of revenue. It acquires and adrmmsters copynghts 1

[

EMI Music Publishing’s pubhshmg catalogues mclude SBK (CBS Songs MGM and Umted Artlsts) Frlmtrax (Columbra
Preliminary results far the year ended 31 March 2007 '

For the financial year ended 31 March 2007, EM[ in its prehmmary results statement released today, reported underlymg
8. Terra Firma

Terra Firma Investments (GP) 2 Limited is the general partner of the six limited partnerships constituting the Terra Firma

Terra Firma Investments (GP) 3 Limited is the general partner of the Terra Firma Capital Parmers !l Fund and makes pri
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1FCE 15 adviser 1o the members of the 1e¢rmma irma group. 1FCF 18 an, 1ndepend: nt pnvate equtty a Iy1s ory irm s€tup in

faks 4on

9. Information on Maltby

LT, - . Lo . S P T A 7 Wb o IV RTEN

Maltby is a newly-incorporated company formed at the direction of Terra Firma for the purpose of making the Offer and |

Further details in relation to Maltby will be contained in the Offer Document.

L I e (7 BE T O

10. Management and employees

5.
PR VE A 2L LPU IR

Maltby attaches great importance,to th,e‘ skills and e:xperience of management and employees of EMI and believes that the

Maltby 1ntends to enter mto d1.scuss1ons w1th semor management of EMI 1f and when the Offer completes regardmg thel

11. EMI Pens:on Schemes

. .
e b oM e v b gL, s M e o4 e L e

EMI operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes the ]argest of whlch ae in the UK, Japan and Germany Mal

AT D

12. EMI Share Schemes and Convertlble Bonds ,

. . . ,_" P
oo Wkl e e N . ORI PR el e nna st Y

Pamc1pants in the EMI Share Schemes w1ll be contacted regardlng the ef‘fect of the, Offer on the1r nghts under these sche1

2 .‘

In addition, holders of Convemble Bonds Jwill be contacted regardmg the effect of the, Offer on, their nghts under those ba

FHAERE

Further details of these proposals will be set out in the Offer Document.,
e - L I S 1Y A A E LN L I E AL N S o e S I TLEE

i -_l.;';" . EANTRFEE R A

13. Financing

2

s g - T A A . —

The cash consnderatlon payable under the Offer and the eosts of the Offer w1]l be ﬁ.mded usmg a mixture of equity subscri

A N
A A

Dresdner Klemwort has conﬁrmed that 1t 15 satisfied that sufﬁc1ent Tesources are .ava11ab]e to Maltby to satisfy in full the «

. . IR WL WIE BRI W e v C e

14. Inducem_ent Fee Agreement o -
) 'll!l’lr I SRR | T SN . . . . T v
As a pre-condition to Maltb); agreeing to announce the Offer EMI has agreed to pay a break fee o Maltby of £24 million
(a) a Cornpetm'g Pr.oposa‘l‘ts allmouncedlunder liulle 2. 5’ of the .C1ty Code prior to the l)ffer lapsmg or betng wathdrawn anc
. v dedv e g trans W s ey G it 0 - ' ' . DRI FTT L
(h) the board of El\/IIwuhdraws .ciuahﬁes ol' advers'el}; m’olc?hﬁes its recorrhnendan on of the Offer o
and in either case the Offer lapses or is withdrawn. i
wocienntE U0 D s e Tnmniaasd chee amien a0l ann o G oo, v e b sl s e e ;,,1
EMI has agreed not to pay an inducement fee to, or to enter into any similar arrangement with, any other person prior to tl
Bl el g . 'i'-.'""'nl R T T R it et ' N PER AP P e y N
Where an approach 1s )made‘ to EMI by a phtentlzll competlngl offel’or EMI has aé; eejdl(subject to conﬁdenttahty ol;llgatlm
P ettt
15. Dehstmg, compulsory acqmsmon and re-reglstratton o ' " .
- D . . r - 4 j|,,‘| " - .,,”,'..,.._f‘, R a.h N .
If Malthy recelves acceptances l)f rthe Offer ln( respect hf andfor othemtse aclqlltrr s §0 per cent. or rnore of the EMl Sharn
If the Offer becomes or is declared unconditional in all respects and sufficient acceptances under the Offer are relc::.rved A
ter L v .uu'l...": Vit A '-l'— I R TI v b ] Lt
Itis antlmpated that the cahl:ellanon of hstulg‘ onithe Offl-c‘u]al List and of adrmssmn to tl:admg orl the Lo'ndon Stock Excha
A ey U IR PR T P I T N ..,g”,',.“:,"‘.‘_' . .
Maltby will notrll’y El’l/lI.Share}holders if and whell the relevadt event set out above has occurred and ‘conﬁrm that the nonc
Following the Offer becoming or being declared nncondmonal in all respects and after the cancellatlonl. of ll‘stm‘g orl the O
16. Dlsclosure oflntere'stslln:lllll\ﬂ' e o . e e
e LEINT RS | .
Except as disclosed below and save for the irrevocable undertakings descl'lbed in paragraph 6 above as at the close of bus

\

Party Interest in EMI Shares
Allianz Insurance plc ' 96,600
In view of the requirement of confidentiality and therefore the availability to Maltby of all relevant persons who are presu

17. Overseas shareholders
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The avallablhty of the Offer to EMI Shareholders who are not resident in the United Kingdom may be affected by the law
18. Gerieral - o

The Offer will be subject to the Conditions and :cerfeih further terms set out in Appendix I to this announcement and the fi
The bases aiid sources of certain ihformation contained in this announcement aré set out in Appendix II. Details of the irr
The Offer arid atcéptarices thefeof will be géverned by Eriglish law. The Offer will be subject to the applicable requireme
The Offer Document will be postéd to EMI Sharcholdérs as soon as practicaI:le. '

This annbundement is not intended to I'a'nd does not constitiite, or form part of, an oﬂ'"eﬂr'to sell or invitation to purchase or
Dresdner Kleinwort is acting exéhisively for Terrd Firma'and Maltby and no-one else in connection with the Offer and wi
Gréenhill, which is auihorised and re'gul't:zted in the United Kingdom by the Financial Services A uthority, is acting exclusi

Citi; which is authorised and regulated in the'United Kingdom by the Financial Services Authority, is act:'ng'exclus:'vely fi

‘Deutsche Bank is giuthorised under German ‘Banking;' Law{( Comp'etent author'-'it}'r}'ﬁdF in'~ Federal Financial Supervfsing .

The ava ilability of the Offer to persons Who' are not resident inthe UK may o:é'a"jj""ected by the laws of the relevant jurisdic

’H’:e release publtcatton or dtstrtbutton of thts announcement in _]urtsdtcttons other than the UK may be restrtcted by law

PR

Any per.son (including, without limitation, any custodian, niominee and trustee) who would or otherwzse mtends to or wh
BRI H e v i

This announcement does not constztute or form part of, uny offer for, or any soltc:tatton of any oﬁ"er for securities, nor is

The Oﬁ'er is bezng made for securities of a UK company and United States mvestors should be aware that thts announcen.

e L . [

The Oﬁ'er szI be made in the Umted States pursuant to appltcable US tender oﬁ'er rules and otherwxse in accordance wit,
[ B . o, wea

The receipt of cash pursuant fo the Oﬁ'er by a Untted States holder of EMI Shares may be a taxable transaction Jor Umtea

EMI is tncorporated undet‘ the Iaws of England an(f Wales. A majont}; of tne EMI Dtrectors are restdents of countries ot

In accordance wzth’the Ctty Codeand nonmal IU}{ marlltetio-rt’tcttc:e ;::d putsuant to cIass exernpttve reItef granted by the §

T Bt e e, |:’f'Ii'.T EFRERTEN AN g TP MR TR o Arprom, e wh

Th:s announcement mcludmg mformat:on included or incorporated by reference in thzs announcement, may contam "for

SRR PON I R IO S IUUEI [ R L 3 S NS LA RS

Dealmg Dtsclasure Requtrements

' .
b, 1. Gy B “”lf'i{rl.l . % St B -1 1

Under the provzswns of Ruie 8.3 of the Ctty Code If any person is, or becomes mtereste (dzrectt’y or tndtrectly) in 1%

T T R B 0 S ) 'urfnl

Under the provmons of Rule 8 1 af the Ctty Code, all "dealtngs in "relevant securities” of EMI by Maltby or EMI, or by
LY 1' [ I r T o Vedd -
A dtsclosure table gtwng detatls of the compantes in whase re!evant securtttes " "dealings " should be dtsclosed and the

|
A tmacinn ey .

r.Jta‘,"" ] ) I i

"Interests in securtttes arise, in summary, when a erson has lon economtc exposure, whether condtttonal or absolute, .
’3’ P 4 P

e P B L T PR T S L.

Terms in quotatton marks are def ned in the Ctty Code, whtch can aiso be found on the Panel s webstte If you are in any

APPENDIX I

‘l
[ R

CONDITIONS AND CERTAIN FURTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER

1. CONDITIONS TO THE OFFER
The Offer will be conditional upon:

(a) wvalid acceptances being received (and not, where permitted, withdrawn) by not later than 3.00 p.m. (London time) on

(i) EMI Shares which have been unconditionally allotted but not issued before the Offer becomes or is declared v
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(ii)  valid acceptances shall be deemed to have been received,in respect of EMI Shares which are treated for the pt

(iii)  the expression "EMI Shares to which the offer relates" shall be construed in accordance with_ Part 28 of the Cu

(b) the European Commission making or being deemed to have made a decision that it will not initiate proceedings unde

{c) o govemment or governmental, quasi governmental, supranational or statutory authonity, eourt, regulatory or investi

(1) make the Offer, its implementation or the acquisition of any EMI Shares by any .r_neg'nb‘er_of_ the Maltby Group
(i)  require, prevent or materially delay the divestiture by anyjrne_rnber of the Maltby Group or b),’, any _rnember of

(i)  impose any material limitation on, or res_u]t in a material delay in, the ability of any membher of the Maltby Gr

(iv)  require any member of the Maltby Group or the Wider EMI Group to acquire or offer to acquire any shares, o

(v)  require, prevent or materially delay a divestiture by any member of the Maltby Group, of any shares.or, other s«
D L A T R Pt Tt [ S A (LR P L T R O P PO A A I A Y

(vi)  resultinany mlember'o_f the Wider EMI Group ceasing to be able to carry on business under any, name under

(vii)  impose any material limitatiori on the ability of any member of the Wider Elv!ﬂ Group to integrate. or co-ordin

(viii) otherwise adversely af’fect the business, assets, proﬁts financial position or trading position of any. member o:

and all applicable mandatory ‘waiting and other tirne penods during which any such Third Party could decide to take,
institute of implement any Suchi action, proceeding, suit, investigation, enquiry or reference or otherwise intervene

. under the laws of any jurisdiction in respect of, the Offer. or the acquisition or proposed acquisition of any EMI,.,

Shares having expired, lapsed or been termmated

J\\ B PN T R .

(d) all mandatory ﬁlings‘ under the Umted States Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (as amended) a

3 . R .
' .."'l\q. N !l

\..

(e) since 31 March 2006 and except as disclosed in the Published EMI Information or as fairly disclosed by or on behalf

o

" 81 . [T 4

(i) any rnonies bori'owed by, or any other indebtedness (actual or contingent) of or any grant or subSidy availa
(ii) the rights liabilities obllgations interests or business of any memb'er of the Wider EMI Group under a\ny s
(iii) - any member of‘the‘ \iliider EMI G}i)u; \ceasing to be able‘to carry on busm;ss'under any nai.rie i.inder which
- . et e e n . “ tayt Van b s . Fiala i
(iv) o any assets or'iiiterests of dny nrembdr'oi‘ tlie l?\lider 1\EMl‘ (‘Jirdup‘l;elng or\falling to be disposed\of oi' chargei
ety T B TS T T PO I TRV ot PO P O S A Y
v) the creation or enforcement of any mortgage, charge or other security iriterest over the whole or anyl part :)i
(vi) the value of, or the ﬁnancral or trading position or prospects of, any member of the‘\\lidei EMI Grodp bein-
(Vii) o the creation of any matenal liability (actiizll or contmgentl l:iy any riieinber oi' the Wider l-EMI \Groiip othenli
.(viii) ‘any material liability of any iriember of tlie '\iVide‘r EM\]V Group to mak‘e' any severance 'terrhliia.tior’i bonus c

. Wi ,‘-l ',' [RARIREN ny ,.”‘r-‘-" C P . Vi

since 31 March 2006 and except as disclosed n the Published EMI Iriforrnation or as fairly disclosed by or on behalt

NI EEET . IR RS o .

(i) issued or agreed to issue or authorised or proposed the issue of additional shares of any class or securities <

owhodyt o ‘..t

(ii)' ' save for the final dmdend for the year ended 3 lVlarch 2006 of 6 0 pence (net) per EMI Share paid to EMI

(iii) merged with or demerged from or acquired any body corporate, partnership or business or acquired or disp

(iv) save as between EMI and its wholly- ov:'n‘ed subSidiaries or between such wholly-owned subsrdiaries made,
.o I v oL

(v) issued, authorised or proposed the lSS‘l.le of any debentures or made any ,change in or to, or (save in the ord

{vi) entered into or varied or announced its intention to enter into or vary any contract, transaction, arrangemern

{vii) entered into or varied the terms of any service agreement, arrangement or coritract with (x) any director of:

(viii) proposed, agreed to provide or modified in any material respect the terms of: any share option scheme, ince

(ix) nor the trustees of the relevant pension scheme since that date having, made or agreed or consented to any
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(x) except as between EMI and its wholly‘-owned' subsidiaries or between such wholly-owned subsidiaries and

(xi) purchased, redeemecl ‘br repaid dr ahrlodnb'ed arly proposal to;purchas;e (redeem or repay any of its own sha
(xi1) "walved or compromlsed any claim otlreri»frrs'se than in the ordmary course of business whlch is matenal intl
- (xiii) -"_ made any material altération td 1ts memorandum or articles of assocranon or other incorporation document
- (xw) otner than in resPeet of a hody corporate whtch is dormant and waa solvent at the relevant time, taken or p1
xv) ' cnmmencecl negotiations with one or more of its creditors with a view /to reschedulmg or restructuring any
(xvi)’ ,'2 en*ered mto any contract, commrtment agreement or arrangement otherwrse than in the ordinary course of

(g) since 3‘ March "006 and except as dlsclosed m the Published EMI Informatlon or as fairly disclosed by or on behalf

_ (i) th.,rr. navmg been no adverse change in the busmess assets, ﬁnanc1al or tradmg position or profits or opera
(ii) no litigation, arbitration proceedmgs prosecutlon or other legal proceedmgs havmg been threatened, annou

i ia
(iii) no contingent or other hablltty having arisen or become known to Ma]tby whrch would be llkely to advers:

(h) since 31 March 2006 and except as dlsclosed in the Published EMI Informatton or as falrly disclosed by or on behalf
. !;- . "5' te 1Yy 47 "l‘. r'l i ':"-; R
(i) that any ﬁnancral busmess or other information concerning the Wider EMI Gr0up publrcly dlsclosed or dis

- - b s ARl L G i e v

. (ii) -that any member of the Wider EMI Group is subject to any liability, ¢ ontlngent or otherwrse WhJCll is mate
(111) any mformatlon whlch materially affects the 1mport of any information dlsclosed to Maltby at any time bef
TR R KNI ST RIS
(1) except as dtsclosed in the Published EMI Informatron or as farrly drsclosed by or on behalf of EMI to Maltby before
g [ A | ] gl

2. CERTAIN FURTHER TERMS OF THE OFFER

[ - -

. Sy .
ot al Y

Maltby reserves the nght to waive in whole or in part all or any of the Condmons except Condmon (a)

T

AT UYL | T et A TT RN SN IO
Save with the consent of the Panel, the Offer will lapse and the Offer will not proceed if the European Comrmission either
PSRN AT

Conditions (b) to (i} {inclusive) must be fulfilied, be uetermmed by Maltby to be or remain satisfied or (if capable of waiv
RIS A

If the Offer lapses it will cease to be capable of further acceptance. EMI Shareholders who have accepted the Offer and M

The EMI Shares wrll be acqutred by Maltby fully paid and free from all liens, eqmtable 1nterests charges encumbrances
' 4 ' R R S P LT L ST v, gt ' N R r
If Malitby is requlred by the Panel to make an offer for EMI Shares under the provisions of Rule 9 of the C1ty Code Maltl
e, NN s [ ARV I PO S LI 4
The Offer will be made on, and sub_]ect to, the Condmons and terms set out in this Appendix I and on such further terms a
P I

The Offer w1ll be governed by Enghsh law and w1ll be subJect to the Jjurisdiction of the courts of England. The Offer wnll

P . L

[ i e . A

‘ APPENDIX II
A bAsaaAND SOURCES )
In thls annourlcement' v N
I. N The value placed by the Offer on the exrstmg 1ssued EMl ’Shares (approximately £2,121 million) is based on 80
2. | ‘ The value placed by the Offer on the fully diluted share capltal of EMI (approximately £2,426 million) is based
3. The Closing Price of EMI Shares are derived from the Darly Official List or the London Stock Exchange’s web:
4, The average Closing Prices of EMI Shares represeut the average Closing Prices for EMI Shares for the relevant
5. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information relating to EMI is extracted from the consolidated financial s1
6. EMI’s ehterprise. value of £3,223 million is calculated as the fully diluted share capital value of £2,426 million |

http://www.londonstockexchange.com/LSECWS/IFSPages/MarketNewsPopup.aspx?id=1... 21.5.07




A.I"I’ILN Ulz\ ll

Pt

DETAILS OF IRREVOCABLE UNDERTAKINGS

ot

The followmg Duectors of EMI have gwen u‘revocable undertakmgs as descnbecl in paragraph 6 of this announcement in

ta

L Name Number of Shares . | % of issued share ca
' Y ’ 1 Gildersleeve I [ 0.000172
E L Nicoli Lo g}, 446442 1 -~ .. |+0.055766
R C Faxon 516,386 0.064503
+ .| M.D. Stewart caet o) 00 vl e o - (L000000
S Bailey 1,250 0.000156
= ["K-K'Cditon’ ChTLT L s T e R L 000624
. | P A Georgescu . ) 106,377 0.013288. .
-* " T'D J Londoner "} 10,000 oo 0.001249
T .Total o 1,086,832 e .1 0.135758
[ .'.-' P r|| PR AT :' L0 “ e ) < PR VI R TR A LT L
These 1rrevocahle undertakmgs cease to be bmdtng in the followmg c1rcumstances
P T NS TV ML I IO TR T sl o o
(a) the Offer is wnthdrawn or lapses
el RIS Jn 1"-’:’:l' '.""-I 1,41 Y ":’ S ' "'”" e T
(b) the Oﬁ'er Document is not osted within 28 days (or such lon er period as the Panel may a ee being not more t
P A Ber p y 2r g
¥ ' ot il e vmas cou L oo
(c) the Offer has not become or been declared unconditional in all respects hy 6.00 p m. on the date fallmg 6 montht
S o o HIIAIE, £ LA LML TN . N
(d) the dlrectors of EM] have
s e O O A TRMETTE I 71 NP S TUN TR . ; : i X
(i) withdrawn or modrfied their approval or recommendanon of the Offer contemplated by thrs ann
ARSI ST P T Rk TPRRIE A SN : :
(ii) approved the announcement of or recommended any Competmg Proposal or
. ' . B A -t
(iii) publicly announced an intention to take any of the foregomg actions; and

RN UIRATERE NN Ul '-';;:.‘r' e i . L s
(e) the Offer becomes or is declared uncondmonal in all respects.

P 3

T I R O LT B R T R TP ST I F AT E R (IS P T W
APPENDIXIV
. H - o, gy Parrow L 3 - T T
A N 7L s VI PURC R SN R FRPIC T N TR PEY (N A8 VST L b T LAY P RPN I ) ST AL S SRR S LA
TS S I EUR FIY Y S Y O S I S S BRI PRELT - IR S 1 PR S MR RL RTINS, S A el
PUNE B . . 1 ] LA 5 N . ;o " AT e :
Vot e FIEPERP R LS | LY PR O B Y] TS |; Ly 4ty a “ ! U PR . L B Y

The followmg deﬁnmons app]y throughout this announcement unless the context otherw1se requtres

T ' " o T - B
Gl R I S T N B BTN o Rt L N S (T L TAPRLNP N '

"Authonsatrons o ‘ authonsatlons orders, grants, recogmtlons conﬁrmattons consents |
“Busmess Day AR o - any day other than a éaturday 01: a Sunday \;fhen cleanng banks g)ene
"Citi" ‘ T T e Cmgrbup Global.Markets I;umted ' -" !

"City Code" the Crty Code on Takeovers and Mergers

"Closing Price" the clbsing ntiddle rnarket quotation of an EMI Share as derived fro
"Competing Proposal” a proposal offer 'tender offer, merger, acquisition scheme of arrange
"Conditions" o the condmons whlch are set out in paragraph 1 of Appendrx Iof thlc
“Co‘nvertible Bonds” . . . h the 5 25% guaranteed convemble bonds due 2010 issued by EMI Grv
“Depositary” ' a JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. B

“Dresdner Kleinwort” ' | - Dresdner Kleinwort Limited

"EMI" . EMI:Group plc

“EMI ADS” | an American depositary share comprising two EMI Shares
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“EMI ADS Holder”
"EMI Group"

"EMI Pension Schemes"

"EMI Shareholders" or “Shareholders™

"EMI Share Schemes"

nlEMIJSh‘a‘résuu l}!"..::.' .

“Deutsche Bank”
"Directors"
“Exchange Act”
"Form of Acceptance”
"FSA"

"Greenhill"

"Listing Rules"
"London Stock Exchange"”
"Maltby"

“Maltby Group”
"Offer"

"Offer Document”
“Official List™

"Panel]”

"Published EMI Information™

"Regulatory Information Service"

“Terra Firma”

“Terra Firma Capital Partners” or “TFCP”

“UK Listing Authority”

"UK" or "United Kingdom"

"US" or "United StatCS“
"US Holder"

"Warner Music Group”
"Wider EMI Group”
“"Wider Maltby Group"
"£" or "Sterling"

"$" or "US Doliars"

" a holder of EMI ADSs

EMLI, its subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings
the EMI Group Pension Fund, the Toshiba-EMI Limited Retirement
holders of EMI Shares

the 1995 EMI Group Executive Share Option Plan, the EMI Group &

’ :i _.,,;('a)' the ég_(is.tin'g ﬁncondi‘tiéﬁallj allotted or ;és_uéi':l and fully paid ordi

Nyt - v . H

tr .

- g AL B A T
(b) any further ordinary shares of 14 pence each in the capital of EMI w

but excluding any shares held as treaéury shares on such date as Maltby

Deutsche Bank AG
the directors of EMI
the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
the form of acceptance and authority for use in connection with the O
Financiai Services Authority
Greenhill & Co. International LLP
the listing rules made by the FSA under section 73A of the Financia
London Stock Exchange plc
Maltby Limited, a private limited company incorporated under the L
Maltby, its holding companies, subsidiaries and subsidiary undertaki
the offer to be made by Malthy to acquire the EMI Shares on the te
the document to be addressed to, amongst others, EMI Shareholders
the Official List of the UK Listing Authority
the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers
EMTI's Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 200t
any information service authorised from time to fime by the FSA for 1
Terra Firma Investments (GP) 2 Limited as the general partner of t
Terra Firma Capital Partners Limited
the FSA acting in its capacity as the competent authority for the purp
the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland
The United States of America, its territories and possessions, any stat
(2) persons resident in the United States who hold shares in EMI (in
Warner Music Group Corp.
the EMI Group and associated undertakings of EMI and any other b
the Maltby Group and associated undertakings of Maltby and any oth
pounds Sterling, or the lawful currency of the UK from time to time

the lawful currency of the United States from time to time.
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All reterences to time 1n this announcement are to London time unless otherwise stated.
A . ot e L o

Ref: 82-373
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RET! 82-373
Regulatory Announcement

Go to market news section =
Company EMI Group PLC

TIDM EMI

Headline Holding in Company

Released 16:08 22-May-07

Number PRNUK-2205

TR-1 NOTIFICATICN OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
" voting rights are attached:

EMI Group plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the No
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of wvoting rights No
Other (please specify): N/A No
3. Full name of person(s) subject to the notification ABN AMRO Bank N.V
cbligation: London Branch

4. Full name of shareholder{s) (if different from 3.}: N/A

5. Date of the transaction {(and date on which the threshold 21-05-2007
is crossed or reached if different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 22-05-2007
7. Threshold(s) that is/are crossed or reached: 3.0%
8. Notified details: See below

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type Situation previous to Resulting situation after the triggering
of shares the Triggering trensaction
if possible transaction
using the
ISIN CODE
Number Number Number
of of Voting of Number of voting ¥ of voting
Shares Rights shares richts - rights
Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
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GB0000444736 33,101,497 33,101,497 52,852,483 52,852,483 n/a 6.60% n/a

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of financial Expiration Exercise/:. - .. ., Number' of voting % of voting
instrument .. ¢ - - date.. - ‘t*Conversion . ' ', rights that may be rights
S I - ~.Eériqg/Dafe v ;H" 7:§cgui§éd3if_ the
S e T e " ngtrument

is exercised/converted

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Total (A+B}
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

52,852,483 6.60%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

N/A

Proxy Voting:
10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/B

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional information: N/Aa
14. Contact name: Myrto Koimtzoglou

15. Contact telephone number: 020-7678-0480

C. L. Christian
Deputy Secretary
EMI Greoup plc
020-7795-7317
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VIA PR NEWSWIRE DISCLOSE
ER 07/81

Regulatory News Service 22nd May, 2007.

EMI GrRouP PLC
Rule 2.10 Announcement — Relevant Securities in Issue

EMI Group plc announces, in accordance with Rule 2.10 of the City Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (the “City Code"), that, at the close of business on 22nd May 2007, it had
the following relevant securities (within the meaning of the City Code) in issue:

- 809,685,490 Ordinary Shares of 14 pence each under ISIN code GB0000444736;
and,

-~ 243,342 guaranteed convertible bonds due 2010 issued by EMI Group Finance
(Jersey) Limited, a subsidiary of EMI Group plc, in an aggregate amount of
US3$243,342,000 under ISIN code XS0176780517.

Enquiries:

EMI GROUP PLC
Amanda Conroy Corporate Communications +44-(0)20-7795-7529
Pippa Strong Investor Relations +44-(0)20-7795-7681

EMI Group ple 27 Wrights Lane London W8 58W UK Tel +44 {0)20 7795 7000 Fax +44 (0}20 7795 7001
Registered Office: Address as above. Registered in England No. 229231




RN, O2-0/79
Regulatory Announcement

Go to market naws section i %
Company EMI Group PLC

TIDM EMI

Headline Holding in Company

Released 15:52 23-May-07

Number PRNUK-2305

TR-1 NOTIFICATION OF MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

1. Identity of the issuer or the underlying issuer of existing shares to which
voting rights are attached:

EMI Group plc
2. Reason for the notification
An acquisition or disposal of voting rights Yes

An acquisition or disposal of financial instruments which may result in the No
acquisition of shares already issued to which voting rights are attached

An event changing the breakdown of voting rights No
Other (please specify): N/A No
3. Full name of person{s) subject to the notification ABN AMRO Bank N.V
obligation: London Branch

4. Full name of shareholder(s) (if different from 3.): N/A

5. Date of the transaction (and date on which the threshold 22-05-2007
is crossed or reached if different):

6. Date on which issuer notified: 23-05-2007
7. Threshold({s) that is/are crossed or reached: 3.0%
8. Notified details: See below

A: Voting rights attached to shares

Class/type Situation previcus to Resulting situation after the triggering
of shares the Triggering transaction
if possible transaction
using the
ISIN CODE
Number Number Number
of of Voting of Number «f voting ¥ of voting
Shares Rights shares rights rights
Direct Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
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GB0000444736 52,852,483 52,852,483 59,168,708 59,168,708 n/a 7.39% n/a

B: Financial Instruments

Resulting situation after the triggering transaction

Type of. financial Expiration .Exercise/-: ...... . '+.. Number.of voting % of voting
instrument . ~date: - ' -Conversion ¢ . -rights that may be - rights
R R '.Pe;ilo_d_/l?éte'l P acqug%eg:if' the :
: Coe e S """ Uinstrument

is exercised/converted

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Total (A+B)
Number of voting rights % of voting rights

59,168,708 7.39%

9. Chain of controlled undertakings through which the voting rights and/or the
financial instruments are effectively held, if applicable:

N/A

Proxy Voting:
10. Name of the proxy holder: N/A
11. Number of voting rights proxy holder will cease to hold: N/A

12. Date on which proxy holder will cease to hold voting rights: N/A

13. Additional information: N/A
14. Contact name: Myrto Koimtzoglou

15. Contact telephone number: 020-7678-0480

C. L. Christian
Deputy Secretary
EMI Group plc
020-7795-7317
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ViA PR NEWSWIRE DISCLOSE
ER 07//83

Regulatory News Service 23rd May, 2007.

EMI GROUP PLC
Document re Rule 2.6 Letter

Copies of the document sent to the Company's shareholders on 23rd May 2007, in
accordance with Rule 2.6 of the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers, have been
submitted to the UK Listing Authority and wili be available for inspection at the UK
Listing Authority's Document Viewing Facility, which is situated at: Financial Services
Authority, 25 The North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London E14 5HS (Tel. No. (0)20
7676 1000).

EMI Group plc 27 Wrights Lane London W8 58W UK Tel +44 ()20 7795 7000 Fax +44 (0)20 7795 7001 w
Registered Office: Address as above, Registered in England No. 226231 @




